
 

1 
 

CITY OF OWOSSO 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

MONDAY, MARCH 02, 2020 
7:30 P.M. 

 
Meeting to be held at City Hall 

301 West Main Street 
 

AGENDA 
 
OPENING PRAYER: 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
ROLL CALL: 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 18, 2020: 
 

ADDRESSING THE CITY COUNCIL 
 

1. Your comments shall be made during times set aside for that purpose. 
2. Stand or raise a hand to indicate that you wish to speak. 
3. When recognized, give your name and address and direct your comments and/or questions to any 

City official in attendance. 
4. Each person wishing to address the City Council and/or attending officials shall be afforded one 

opportunity of up to four (4) minutes duration during the first occasion for citizen comments and 
questions.  Each person shall also be afforded one opportunity of up to three (3) minutes duration 
during the last occasion provided for citizen comments and questions and one opportunity of up to 
three (3) minutes duration during each public hearing.  Comments made during public hearings shall 
be relevant to the subject for which the public hearings are held. 

5. In addition to the opportunities described above, a citizen may respond to questions posed to him or 
her by the Mayor or members of the Council, provided members have been granted the floor to pose 
such questions. 

 
PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 

 
1. 2020 Street Bond Question – Informational Presentation.  A presentation to impart information 

regarding the Street Bond Question on the March 10, 2020 ballot. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
1. Ordinance Amendment – ROW Permit.  Conduct a public hearing to receive citizen comment 

regarding the proposed amendment to Chapter 29, Streets, Sidewalks and Other Public Places, 
Article II, Streets, Division 2, Permits, Sec. 29-48, Performance bond, of the Code of Ordinances of 
the City of Owosso to remove the cash deposit option in lieu of a bond. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
1. Project Status Report. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
1. Emergency Repair Authorization – Tertiary Tower Back-up Pump.  Approve emergency repair and   

overhaul of the back-up pump for the tertiary towers at the WWTP in an amount not to exceed 
$12,180.00 and authorize payment to the Professional Pump, Inc. upon satisfactory repair and 
installation of said unit. 



 

2 
 

2. Automatic Meter Reading System Upgrade.  Approve upgrade of the Automatic Water Meter Reading 
System to the Aclara ONE System in the amount of $19,500.00 and approve payment to the vendor 
upon satisfactory upgrade of the system. 
 

3. Purchase Authorization - DPW Fleet Pickup Trucks.  Waive competitive bidding requirements, 
authorize the purchase of one Ford F150 4x2 pickup and one Ford F250 4x4 pickup truck for the 
DPW fleet from Signature Ford Lincoln Mercury in the amount of $53,842.00 utilizing State Contract 
No. 071 B7700180/Macomb County Contracts 71-15 & 21-18, approve a contingency of $2,000.00 for 
estimated shipping and handling and unplanned configuration changes, and further authorize 
payment to the vendor upon satisfactory delivery of said vehicles.   

  

ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
None. 
 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 
1. Nathan R. Henne, City Manager.  2019 Planning Commission Annual Report. 
2. Cheryl A. Grice, Finance Director.  Revenue & Expenditure Report – January 2020. 
3. Joshua D. Adams, DDA/Main Street Director.  Executive Director Report – as of February 19, 2020. 
4. Downtown Development Authority/Main Street.  Minutes of February 5, 2020. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 
Monday, March 16, 2020 
 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 
 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority – County Representative – term expires 06-30-2020 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2022 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2021 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority – term expires June 30, 2022 
Downtown Loan Committee – Bank Representative - term expires June 30, 2021 
Historical Commission – 2 terms expire December 31, 2020 
Planning Commission – term expires June 30, 2020 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
The City of Owosso will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the hearing 
impaired and audio recordings of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at 
the meeting/hearing upon seventy-two (72) hours notice to the City of Owosso.  Individuals with disabilities requiring 
auxiliary aids or services should contact the City of Owosso by writing, calling, or emailing the following:  Owosso City 
Clerk’s Office, 301 West Main Street, Owosso, MI  48867; Phone: (989) 725-0500; Email: city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us. 
The City of Owosso Website address is www.ci.owosso.mi.us. 
  



Draft 1 02-18-2020 

CITY OF OWOSSO  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 18, 2020        
7:30 P.M. 

 
 
PRESIDING OFFICER:  MAYOR CHRISTOPHER T. EVELETH 
 
OPENING PRAYER:  CHARLES ADAMS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
    SPRINGVALE CHRISTIAN SCHOOL 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: HEATHER BROOKS, OWNER  

BROOKS INNOVATIVE GRAPHICS 
 

PRESENT: Mayor Christopher T. Eveleth, Mayor Pro-Tem Susan J. Osika, 
Councilmembers Loreen F. Bailey, Janae L. Fear, Jerome C. Haber, and 
Daniel A. Law. 

 
ABSENT: Councilmember Nicholas L. Pidek. 
 

APPROVE AGENDA 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Osika to approve the agenda as presented. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Law and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 3, 2020 
 
Motion by Councilmember Bailey to approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 3, 2020 with 
the following correction: 
 

Change the name of the Councilmember that supported the first motion to approve the Recreational 
Marijuana Facilities Ordinance from Fear to Law to give proper credit to the member that took the 
action. 

 
Motion supported by Mayor Pro-Tem Osika and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 

PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
None. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
Special Assessment District No. 2020-01 – Cedar Street, from South Street to Hampton Avenue   
 
City Manager Nathan R. Henne gave an overview of the project planned for Cedar Street as well as a 
summary of the costs and how they will be allocated between the City and homeowners. 
 
A public hearing was conducted to receive citizen comment regarding authorization of Resolution No. 5 
for Special Assessment District No. 2020-01 for Cedar Street, from South Street to Hampton Avenue for 
street rehabilitation. 
 
There were no citizen comments regarding this matter received prior to, or during the meeting. 



Draft 2 02-18-2020 

 
 
 
Motion by Councilmember Bailey that the following resolution be adopted: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 29-2020 
 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 2020-01 
CEDAR STREET  

FROM SOUTH STREET TO HAMPTON AVENUE 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT RESOLUTION NO. 5 

      
WHEREAS, the City Council has met, after due and legal notice, and reviewed the special assessment roll 
prepared for the purpose of defraying the special assessment district’s share of the following described public 
improvement:   
 

CEDAR STREET FROM SOUTH STREET TO HAMPTON AVENUE 
STREET REHABILITATION 

 
and 

 
WHEREAS, all interested parties were heard and after carefully reviewing said special assessment roll 
the Council deems said special assessment roll to be fair, just and equitable and that each of the 
assessments contained thereon results in the special assessment being in accordance with the benefits 
to be derived by the parcel of land assessed.  
      
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  
          
1. Said special assessment roll as prepared by the City Assessor in the amount of $91,602.81 is hereby 

confirmed and shall be known as Special Assessment Roll No. 2020-01.     
      
2. Said special assessment roll shall be divided into ten (10) installments, the first of which shall be due 

and payable on September 1, 2020, and the subsequent installments shall be due on September 1st 
of each and every year thereafter.  Payment of the amount of the special assessment may be made 
in full without interest or penalty by November 1, 2020.  

          
3. The installments of the special assessment rolls shall bear interest at the rate of 6% per annum; 

provided, however, if the bonds are issued in anticipation of said special assessments, then such 
unpaid special assessment shall bear interest at a rate of interest equal to 1% above the average rate 
of interest borne by said bonds.  Such interest shall commence on September 1, 2020 and shall be 
paid annually on each installment due date. 

          
4. Said special assessment roll shall be placed on file in the office of the City Clerk who shall attach her 

warrant to a certified copy thereof within ten (10) days commanding the Assessor to spread the 
various sums shown thereon as directed by the City Council.  

 
Motion supported by Mayor Pro-Tem Osika. 
 
Roll Call Vote.  
 
AYES:  Councilmembers Haber, Fear, Law, Mayor Pro-Tem Osika, Councilmember Bailey,  

and Mayor Eveleth. 
 
NAYS:  None. 
 
ABSENT: Councilmember Pidek. 



Draft 3 02-18-2020 

 
Special Assessment District No. 2020-02 – Clark Avenue, from Oliver Street to King Street 
 
City Manager Nathan R. Henne gave an overview of the project planned for Cedar Street as well as a 
summary of the costs and how they will be allocated between the City and homeowners. 
 
A public hearing was conducted to receive citizen comment regarding authorization of Resolution No. 5 
for Special Assessment District No. 2020-02 for Clark Avenue, from Oliver Street to King Street for street 
rehabilitation. 

 
The following person commented in regard to the proposed special assessment roll: 
 
Tom Kurtz, 721 Lee Street, inquired about how parking will be handled while school is in session.  He 
also asked when Lee Street would be targeted for rehabilitation noting that it is in particularly poor shape 
in front of his house. 
 
City Manager Henne said the project may start slightly before the end of the school year (making for 
potential parking issues).  He said he would see to it that a notice goes out to nearby residents and 
Central School to coordinate parking in the area. 
 
In response to Mr. Kurtz’s questions City Manager Henne indicated that he would have to check to see 
when Lee Street is scheduled for rehabilitation. 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Osika that the following resolution be adopted: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 30-2020 
 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 2020-02 
CLARK AVENUE  

FROM OLIVER STREET TO KING STREET 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT RESOLUTION NO. 5 

      
WHEREAS, the City Council has met, after due and legal notice, and reviewed the special assessment roll 
prepared for the purpose of defraying the special assessment district’s share of the following described public 
improvement:   
 

CLARK AVENUE FROM OLIVER STREET TO KING STREET 
STREET REHABILITATION 

 
and 

 
WHEREAS, all interested parties were heard and after carefully reviewing said special assessment roll 
the Council deems said special assessment roll to be fair, just and equitable and that each of the 
assessments contained thereon results in the special assessment being in accordance with the benefits 
to be derived by the parcel of land assessed.  
      
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  
          
1. Said special assessment roll as prepared by the City Assessor in the amount of $51,598.52 is hereby 

confirmed and shall be known as Special Assessment Roll No. 2020-02.     
      
2. Said special assessment roll shall be divided into ten (10) installments, the first of which shall be due 

and payable on September 1, 2020, and the subsequent installments shall be due on September 1st 
of each and every year thereafter.  Payment of the amount of the special assessment may be made 
in full without interest or penalty by November 1, 2020.  

          



Draft 4 02-18-2020 

3. The installments of the special assessment rolls shall bear interest at the rate of 6% per annum; 
provided, however, if the bonds are issued in anticipation of said special assessments, then such 
unpaid special assessment shall bear interest at a rate of interest equal to 1% above the average rate 
of interest borne by said bonds.  Such interest shall commence on September 1, 2020 and shall be 
paid annually on each installment due date. 

          
4. Said special assessment roll shall be placed on file in the office of the City Clerk who shall attach her 

warrant to a certified copy thereof within ten (10) days commanding the Assessor to spread the 
various sums shown thereon as directed by the City Council.  

 
Motion supported by Councilmember Law. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilmember Law, Mayor Pro-Tem Osika, Councilmembers Haber, Fear, Bailey, and 

Mayor Eveleth. 
 
NAYS: None. 
 
ABSENT: Councilmember Pidek. 
  

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 
Tom Manke, 2910 W. M-21, asked why the millage rate is not stated in the City’s March bond question.  
He commented on what he sees as excessive obstruction charges given to City defendants and vague 
laws regarding police assault. 
 
Eddie Urban, 601 Glenwood Avenue, commented on the great information that is provided by the city’s 
local newspapers, pointing out several specific articles. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Osika asked for an update on the Matthew’s Building.  City Manager Henne said it 
appears that no action by the owner has taken place to date and the City will be issuing a ticket to the 
owner if the sited code enforcement issues are not remedied by next Thursday. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Motion by Councilmember Bailey  to approve the Consent Agenda as follows: 
 
First Reading & Set Public Hearing – ROW Permit Ordinance.  Conduct the first reading and set a 
public hearing for Monday, March 2, 2020 at 7:30 p.m. to receive citizen comment regarding the proposed 
amendment to Chapter 29, Streets, Sidewalks and Other Public Places, Article II, Streets, Division 2, 
Permits, Sec. 29-48, Performance bond, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Owosso to remove the 
cash deposit option in lieu of a bond as detailed in the following resolution: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 31-2020 
 

FIRST READING & SET A PUBLIC HEARING FOR 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 29-48, PERFORMANCE BOND, 

OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
TO REMOVE THE CASH DEPOSIT IN LIEU OF PERFORMANCE BOND OPTION 

 
WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Owosso adopted Ordinance No. 474 on May 22, 1990 establishing 
regulations governing the performance of work under, over, or upon any City street by an outside person, 
firm, or corporation; and 



Draft 5 02-18-2020 

 
WHEREAS, the Director of Public Services requests to revise Section 29-48 of Article II Streets, by 
removing certain language eliminating cash deposits in lieu of performance bonds, and proposing new 
performance bond surety amounts; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has established a long-term practice of holding a public hearing to hear all 
interested persons regarding any and all proposed ordinance amendments. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY OF OWOSSO ORDAINS THAT: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Section 29-48. Performance bond, of Chapter 29, Streets, Sidewalks and 
Other Public Places, Article II, Streets, Division 2, Permits, is hereby amended to read: 
 
Sec. 29-48. - Performance bond.  
 
(a) As a prerequisite to the issuance of a permit for which application has been made under this article, 

the person, firm or corporation to whom or which the permit is to be issued shall file a bond with such 
sureties and in such amount as are acceptable to the city shown in the chart below and conditioned 
upon the following:  

(1) Complete and acceptable performance of the work authorized and covered by the permit;  

(2) Complete and acceptable performance of the conditions contained in the application for the 
permit; and  

(3) Compliance with all requirements of state, county and local laws and regulations. 

 
(b)  In lieu of the foregoing bond requirement, the person, firm or corporation to whom or which the permit 

is to be issued may make a cash deposit conditioned upon the same terms and conditions as apply to 
a bond with sureties as above provided. The amount of such cash deposit shall be determined by the 
city engineer, but in no case shall the cash deposit be less than the amount of the bond with sureties 
which would otherwise be required. Six (6) months after completion of the work for which a permit is 
issued, whether such work is done by the person, firm or corporation to whom or which the permit is 
issued, the city or any other person or entity, any remaining unexpended portions of the cash deposit 
shall be refunded.  
 

(b) The bond shall be submitted once per calendar year.  If all work performed during the permit 
year is satisfactory and in accordance with applicable rules and regulations, the bond shall be 
returned at the end of the calendar and/or permit year.  Failure to comply with the applicable 
rules and regulations, as well as satisfactory restoration requirements, shall result in drawing 
on the performance bond in the amounts of actual cost for the City of Owosso to make 
repairs, plus a $100 administration fee.   

 
(c)  In any case where the amount of the bond or the cash deposit does not cover all costs and expenses 

of the city in the completion of the work authorized and covered by the permit, the deficit shall be paid 
by the person, firm or corporation to whom or which the permit is issued.  

 
SECTION 2.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This amendment shall become effective twenty days after passage. 
 
SECTION 3.  AVAILABILITY.  This ordinance may be purchased or inspected in the city clerk's office, 
Monday through Friday between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 

Amount Type of Work 
$2,000 Any work that does not require a street cut (driveway approach, sewer line 

repair, water line repair with work exclusively behind the curb) 
$5,000 Any work that requires a street cut (sewer repair in street) 



Draft 6 02-18-2020 

 
SECTION 4.  PUBLIC HEARING.  A public hearing is set for Monday, March 2, 2020 at 7:30 p.m. for the 
purpose of hearing citizen comment regarding the proposed ordinance amendment. 
 
 
Lume Grand Opening Permission.  Approve request from Green Sunrise Products, LLC dba Lume for 
the closure of the south west portion of Lot #10 (Comstock parking lot) from 7:00am until 10:00pm 
February 24, 2020 – February 29, 2020 to accommodate overflow parking for the grand opening of the 
Lume recreational marijuana retail facility and authorize Traffic Control Order No. 1434 formalizing the 
request. 
 
 
Contract Amendment – Tree Removal Services.*  Approve Amendment No. 1 to the contract with 
Forrest M. Spitzer d/b/a J & M Tree Service for tree removal services adding $6,000.00 to the contract for 
the removal of trees in the area of the Owosso Drain easement and further approve payment to the 
contractor up to the amendment amount upon satisfactory completion of the work or portion thereof as 
detailed below: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 32-2020 
 

APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO J&M TREE SERVICE OF FLINT, MICHIGAN 
FOR CONTRACTED TREE REMOVAL SERVICES   

 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has determined that additional tree 
removal services are required within a street right of way and easement, to avoid risks of flooding and 
property damage to the general public; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso has solicited a proposal from Forrest M. Spitzer d/b/a J&M Tree Service 
to perform additional tree removal services to address the risk of flooding and property damage in the 
southwest section of the city of Owosso, and 
 
WHEREAS, Forrest M. Spitzer d/b/a J&M Tree Service has offered to provide the additional tree removal 
services in the amount of $6,000.00. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to amend the tree removal services contract with Forrest M. Spitzer d/b/a 
J&M Tree Service of Flint, Michigan to remove additional trees within a street right of way 
and easement in the amount of $6,0000.00. 

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document attached as 

Amendment No. 1 contract for services between the city of Owosso, Michigan and 
Forrest M. Spitzer d/b/a J&M Tree Service in the amount of $6,000.00. 

 
THIRD: The accounts payable department is authorized to pay Forrest M. Spitzer d/b/a J&M Tree 

Service for work satisfactorily completed in the amount of $30,200.00, plus contingency 
work in the amount of $8,000.00, and Amendment No. 1 in the amount of $6,000.00 for a 
total of $44,200.00. 

 
FOURTH: The above expenses shall be paid from accounts 202/203-480-818.000. 

 
 
Purchase Authorization – Street Sweeper.  Waive competitive bidding requirements, authorize the 
purchase of one Elgin Pelican Street Sweeper from Bell Equipment Company, holder of State of Michigan 



Draft 7 02-18-2020 

Contract No. 071B7700091, in the amount of $174,956.00, approve contingency funds for transportation 
and delivery expenses in the amount of $2,000.00, and authorize payment up to the amount of 
$176,956.00 as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 33-2020 
 

AUTHORIZING PURCHASE ORDER WITH 
BELL EQUIPMENT COMPANY OF LAKE ORION, MICHIGAN TO PROCURE ONE  

ELGIN PELICAN STREET SWEEPER  
FOR USE IN THE FLEET MOTOR POOL 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has budgeted from the Fleet Motor Pool 
Replacement Fund for the replacement of a street sweeper used for the maintenance of streets and 
compliance with state of Michigan MS4 storm water regulations of 2003, and 
 
WHEREAS, the existing street sweeper is nearing its cost efficient useful life, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso Director of Public Services & Utilities has reviewed the replacement 
equipment on the State of Michigan MiDeal Contract as priced by Bell Equipment Company, and 
recommends authorizing a purchase order with Bell Equipment for the purchase of one (1) each Elgin 
Pelican street sweeper on the State of Michigan MiDeal Contract, 071B7700091, and  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that:  
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to contract with Bell Equipment Company of Lake Orion, Michigan for the 
purchase of one (1) each Elgin Pelican street sweeper on State of Michigan MiDeal 
Contract 071B7700091, for use in the Fleet Motor Pool, in the amount of $174,956.00.  

 
SECOND: The accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to Bell Equipment 

Company in the amount of $174,956.00, plus contingency funds in the amount of 
$2,000.00 for transportation & delivery expenses and unplanned configuration changes 
for a total of $176,956.00. 

 
THIRD: The above expenses shall be paid from account no. 661-901-979.000.  

 
 
Warrant No. 581.  Authorize Warrant No. 581 as follows: 
 

Vendor Description Fund Amount 

Gould Law, P.C. Professional services-9/10/19-10/14/19 General $10,537.2
8 

 
 
Check Register – January 2020.*  Affirm check disbursements totaling $3,426,888.40 for January 2020. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Law. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilmember Fear, Mayor Pro-Tem Osika, Councilmembers Law, Haber, Bailey, and 

Mayor Eveleth. 
 
NAYS: None. 



Draft 8 02-18-2020 

 
ABSENT: Councilmember Pidek. 
 
Mayor Eveleth noted that they had forgotten to address the citizen question regarding the March ballot 
measure.  City Manager Henne responded to Mr. Manke saying he would provide the information he was 
requesting, he further noted that the City would soon be putting out information on the ballot measure to 
posting to social media. 
 

ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
Notice of Intent to Issue Revenue Bonds and Right to Referendum – Sewer Collection System 
 
City Manager Henne noted that this action would start the 45-day referendum period required for the sale 
of bonds.  He went on to note that the bond in question would have a 20-year maturity and give 2% 
interest. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Bailey to adopt the following resolution of Notice of Intent to Issue Revenue 
Bonds and Right to Referendum thereof for the proposed issuance of bonds to finance the 2020 SRF 
sewer collection system projects:   
 

RESOLUTION NO. 34-2020 
 

AUTHORIZING NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE 
SEWER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, County of Shiawassee, State of Michigan (the “City”) determines 

it to be necessary for the public health, safety and welfare of the City and its residents to acquire and 
construct improvements to the City's sewer system including, but not limited to, replacement and 
rehabilitation of sewer pipes and manholes, together with any appurtenances and attachments and any 
related site improvements (collectively, the “Project”); and  

 
WHEREAS, the City anticipates it will obtain funding for the Project from the State Revolving 

Fund (SRF), a low interest loan financing program administered by the State of Michigan Department of 
Treasury and the Michigan Finance Authority; and  

 
WHEREAS, in order to obtain loans from the SRF Program, the City must issue bonds, and the 

Revenue Bond Act, Act 94, Public Acts of Michigan, 1933, as amended (“Act 94”), provides a means for 
financing the acquisition, construction, and improvement of public improvements such as the Project 
through the issuance of bonds payable from revenues of the City’s Sewer System (the “System”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the issuance of bonds under Act 94 payable from revenues of the System (the 

“Revenue Bonds”) for the purpose of financing the Project represents the most practical means to that 
end, and Section 33 of Act 94 requires the City to publish a notice of intent before the City can issue the 
Revenue Bonds; and  

 
WHEREAS, it will be necessary for the City to issue the Revenue Bonds in an aggregate amount 

not-to-exceed One Million Three Hundred Forty Thousand Dollars ($1,340,000).   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 
 
1. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to publish, or cause to be published,  a 

notice of intent to issue the Revenue Bonds in the Argus-Press, a newspaper of general circulation in the 
City.  The notice of intent shall be published as a one-quarter (1/4) page display advertisement in 
substantially the following form: 

 



Draft 9 02-18-2020 

NOTICE TO ELECTORS OF THE CITY OF OWOSSO 
AND TO USERS OF THE CITY’S SEWER SYSTEM 

OF INTENT TO ISSUE REVENUE BONDS 
AND THE RIGHT OF REFERENDUM THEREON 

 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the City Council of the City of Owosso, County of Shiawassee, State 

of Michigan, intends to issue and sell revenue bonds pursuant to Act 94, Public Acts of Michigan, 1933, 
as amended, in an amount not to exceed One Million Three Hundred Forty Thousand Dollars 
($1,340,000) for the purpose of paying costs to acquire and construct improvements to the City's sewer 
system including, but not limited to, replacement and rehabilitation of sewer pipes and manholes, together 
with any appurtenances and attachments and any related site improvements.   

 
The Revenue Bonds may be issued in one or more series and may be combined with bonds 

issued for other purposes as shall be determined by the City Council.  Each series of the Revenue Bonds 
will mature in annual installments not to exceed the maximum permitted by law, with interest on the 
unpaid balance from time to time remaining outstanding on said bonds to be payable at rates to be 
determined at sale of the Revenue Bonds but in no event to exceed such rates as may be permitted by 
law.   

SOURCE OF PAYMENT OF REVENUE BONDS 
 

THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON THE REVENUE BONDS SHALL BE PAYABLE solely 
from the revenues received by the City from the operations of the Sewer System, except as provided 
below if the revenue bonds are sold to the Michigan Finance Authority.  The revenues will consist of rates 
and charges billed to the users of the System, a schedule of which is available at 
www.ci.owosso.mi.us/utilities.  The rates and charges may from time to time be revised to provide 
sufficient revenues to provide for the expenses of operating and maintaining the System, to pay the 
principal of and interest on the revenue bonds and other obligations of the System, and to provide 
reserves for these purposes.   

 
ADDITIONAL POTENTIAL SOURCES OF PAYMENTS  

 
The City anticipates that it will sell the revenue bonds to the Michigan Finance Authority.  The 

Michigan Finance Authority may require the City to pledge for the payment of the revenue bonds money 
received or to be received by the City derived from imposition of taxes by the State and returned to the 
City as provided by law, except for money the use of which is prohibited for such purposes by the State 
Constitution.  The City may enter into an agreement providing for the payment to the Michigan Finance 
Authority or a trustee of taxes collected by the State and returned to the City, and such funds may be 
pledged for the payment of the revenue bonds.  

  
RIGHT OF REFERENDUM 

 
THE REVENUE BONDS WILL BE ISSUED WITHOUT A VOTE OF THE ELECTORS UNLESS A 

VALID PETITION REQUESTING SUCH A VOTE SIGNED BY NOT LESS THAN 10% OF THE 
REGISTERED ELECTORS RESIDING WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE CITY IS FILED WITH THE 
CITY CLERK WITHIN FORTY-FIVE (45) DAYS AFTER PUBLICATION OF THIS NOTICE.  IF SUCH 
PETITION IS FILED, THE REVENUE BONDS MAY NOT BE ISSUED WITHOUT AN APPROVING VOTE 
OF A MAJORITY OF THE QUALIFIED ELECTORS RESIDING WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE 
CITY VOTING THEREON.  If such petition is filed and the electors of the City voting thereon approve the 
issuance of the revenue bonds, then the bonds may be payable from revenues or from ad valorem taxes 
that may be levied on all taxable property in the City without limitation as to rate or amount. 

 
THIS NOTICE is given pursuant to the requirements of Section 33, Act 94, Public Acts of 

Michigan, 1933, as amended.   
Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk 
City of Owosso 

 



Draft 10 02-18-2020 

2. The City Council does hereby determine that the foregoing form of notice of intent to 
issue the Revenue Bonds, and the manner of publication directed, is adequate notice to the electors of 
the City and the users of the System, and is the method best calculated to give them notice of the City’s 
intent to issue the Revenue Bonds, the purpose of the Revenue Bonds, the source of payment of the 
Revenue Bonds, the security for the Revenue Bonds and the electors’ right of referendum, and that the 
provision of forty-five (45) days within which to file a referendum petition is adequate to insure that the 
City’s electors may exercise their legal rights of referendum, and the newspaper named for publication is 
hereby determined to reach the largest number of persons to whom the notice is directed. 

 
3. The City may incur expenditures for the Project prior to receipt of proceeds of the 

Revenue Bonds, and may advance moneys for that purpose from the funds of the System to be 
reimbursed from proceeds of the Revenue Bonds when available.     

 
4. The City hereby makes the following declaration of intent for the purpose of complying 

with the reimbursement rules of Treas. Reg. § 1.150-2 pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended: 

 
(a) As of the date hereof, the City reasonably expects to reimburse itself with the 

proceeds of debt to be incurred by the City for costs of the Project that were or 
will be paid subsequent to sixty (60) days prior to the date hereof. 

(b) The maximum principal amount of debt expected to be issued for the Project is 
$1,340,000.   

(c) The expenditures described above are “capital expenditures” as defined in 
Treasury Regulation § 1.150-1(b), which are any costs of a type which are 
properly chargeable to a capital account (or would be so chargeable with a 
proper election or with the application of the definition of placed in service under 
Treas. Reg. § 1.150-2(c)) under general Federal income tax principles (as 
determined at the time the expenditure is paid). 

 
5. The City requests Robert W. Baird & Co., Incorporated to serve as Loan Facilitation 

Agent to assist the City in preparation and planning for the sale of the Revenue Bonds.  
 
6. The City requests Miller, Canfield, Paddock and Stone, P.L.C. (“Miller, Canfield”) to 

continue as bond counsel to the City for the Revenue Bonds.  The City recognizes that Miller, Canfield 
has represented from time to time, and currently represents, the Michigan Finance Authority and various 
underwriters, financial institutions and other potential participants in the financing process for unrelated 
projects, any of which might offer to purchase the Revenue Bonds.  The City requests Miller, Canfield to 
continue as bond counsel, notwithstanding the potential concurrent representation of any such potential 
participant regarding any unrelated matter. 

 
7. The Finance Director is authorized to apply to a rating agency for a credit assessment if 

necessary to comply with requirements to participate in the State Revolving Fund program. 
 
8. The officers, administrators, agents and attorneys of the City are authorized and directed 

to take all other actions necessary and convenient to facilitate preparation of the Revenue Bonds for sale.  
The Revenue Bonds will be sold only after the City Council approves a resolution or ordinance 
authorizing issuance and sale of the Revenue Bonds.  

 
9. All resolutions and parts of resolutions, insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this 

resolution, are hereby rescinded.   
 

Motion supported by Councilmember Law. 
 
Roll Call Vote.  
 



Draft 11 02-18-2020 

AYES:  Mayor Pro-Tem Osika, Councilmembers Haber, Fear, Bailey, Law, and Mayor Eveleth. 
 
NAYS:  None. 
 
ABSENT: Councilmember Pidek. 
 
 
Notice of Intent to Issue Revenue Bonds and Right to Referendum – WWTP Improvements 
 
The terms of this bond would be the same as the bond above. 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Osika to adopt the following resolution of Notice of Intent to Issue Revenue 
Bonds and Right to Referendum thereof for the proposed issuance of bonds to finance the 2020 SRF 
Waste Water Treatment Plant projects: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 35-2020 
 

AUTHORIZING NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, County of Shiawassee, State of Michigan (the “City”) determines 

it to be necessary for the public health, safety and welfare of the City and its residents to acquire and 
construct improvements and repairs to the City's wastewater treatment plant including installation of new 
headworks screw pumps and motors, and grit chamber mechanical parts, together with any 
appurtenances and attachments and any related site improvements (collectively, the “Project”); and  

 
WHEREAS, the City anticipates it will obtain funding for the Project from the State Revolving 

Fund (SRF), a low interest loan financing program administered by the State of Michigan Department of 
Treasury and the Michigan Finance Authority; and  

 
WHEREAS, in order to obtain loans from the SRF Program, the City must issue bonds, and the 

Revenue Bond Act, Act 94, Public Acts of Michigan, 1933, as amended (“Act 94”), provides a means for 
financing the acquisition, construction, and improvement of public improvements such as the Project 
through the issuance of bonds payable from revenues of the City’s Wastewater Treatment System (the 
“System”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the issuance of bonds under Act 94 payable from revenues of the System (the 

“Revenue Bonds”) for the purpose of financing the Project represents the most practical means to that 
end, and Section 33 of Act 94 requires the City to publish a notice of intent before the City can issue the 
Revenue Bonds; and  

 
WHEREAS, it will be necessary for the City to issue the Revenue Bonds in an aggregate amount 

not-to-exceed Two Million One Hundred Forty-Five Thousand Dollars ($2,145,000).  
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 
 
1. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to publish, or cause to be published,  a 

notice of intent to issue the Revenue Bonds in the Argus-Press, a newspaper of general circulation in the 
City.  The notice of intent shall be published as a one-quarter (1/4) page display advertisement in 
substantially the following form: 

 



Draft 12 02-18-2020 

NOTICE TO ELECTORS OF THE CITY OF OWOSSO 
AND TO USERS OF THE CITY’S 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT SYSTEM 
OF INTENT TO ISSUE REVENUE BONDS 

AND THE RIGHT OF REFERENDUM THEREON 
 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the City Council of the City of Owosso, County of Shiawassee, 
State of Michigan, intends to issue and sell revenue bonds pursuant to Act 94, Public Acts of Michigan, 
1933, as amended, in an amount not to exceed Two Million One Hundred Forty-Five Thousand Dollars 
($2,145,000) for the purpose of paying costs to acquire and construct improvements and repairs to the 
City's wastewater treatment plant including installation of new headworks screw pumps and motors, and 
grit chamber mechanical parts, together with any appurtenances and attachments and any related site 
improvements.   

 
The Revenue Bonds may be issued in one or more series and may be combined with bonds 

issued for other purposes as shall be determined by the City Council.  Each series of the Revenue Bonds 
will mature in annual installments not to exceed the maximum permitted by law, with interest on the 
unpaid balance from time to time remaining outstanding on said bonds to be payable at rates to be 
determined at sale of the Revenue Bonds but in no event to exceed such rates as may be permitted by 
law.   

SOURCE OF PAYMENT OF REVENUE BONDS 
 

THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON THE REVENUE BONDS SHALL BE PAYABLE solely 
from the revenues received by the City from the operations of the Wastewater Treatment System, except 
as provided below if the revenue bonds are sold to the Michigan Finance Authority.  The revenues will 
consist of rates and charges billed to the users of the System, a schedule of which is available from the 
City’s Public Utilities Department.  The rates and charges may from time to time be revised to provide 
sufficient revenues to provide for the expenses of operating and maintaining the System, to pay the 
principal of and interest on the revenue bonds and other obligations of the System, and to provide 
reserves for these purposes.   

 
ADDITIONAL POTENTIAL SOURCES OF PAYMENTS  

 
The City anticipates that it will sell the revenue bonds to the Michigan Finance Authority.  The 

Michigan Finance Authority may require the City to pledge for the payment of the revenue bonds money 
received or to be received by the City derived from imposition of taxes by the State and returned to the 
City as provided by law, except for money the use of which is prohibited for such purposes by the State 
Constitution.  The City may enter into an agreement providing for the payment to the Michigan Finance 
Authority or a trustee of taxes collected by the State and returned to the City, and such funds may be 
pledged for the payment of the revenue bonds.   

 
RIGHT OF REFERENDUM 

 
THE REVENUE BONDS WILL BE ISSUED WITHOUT A VOTE OF THE ELECTORS UNLESS A 

VALID PETITION REQUESTING SUCH A VOTE SIGNED BY NOT LESS THAN 10% OF THE 
REGISTERED ELECTORS RESIDING WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE CITY IS FILED WITH THE 
CITY CLERK WITHIN FORTY-FIVE (45) DAYS AFTER PUBLICATION OF THIS NOTICE.  IF SUCH 
PETITION IS FILED, THE REVENUE BONDS MAY NOT BE ISSUED WITHOUT AN APPROVING VOTE 
OF A MAJORITY OF THE QUALIFIED ELECTORS RESIDING WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE 
CITY VOTING THEREON.  If such petition is filed and the electors of the City voting thereon approve the 
issuance of the revenue bonds, then the bonds may be payable from revenues or from ad valorem taxes 
that may be levied on all taxable property in the City without limitation as to rate or amount. 

 
THIS NOTICE is given pursuant to the requirements of Section 33, Act 94, Public Acts of 

Michigan, 1933, as amended.   



Draft 13 02-18-2020 

Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk 
City of Owosso 

 
2. The City Council does hereby determine that the foregoing form of notice of intent to 

issue the Revenue Bonds, and the manner of publication directed, is adequate notice to the electors of 
the City and the users of the System, and is the method best calculated to give them notice of the City’s 
intent to issue the Revenue Bonds, the purpose of the Revenue Bonds, the source of payment of the 
Revenue Bonds, the security for the Revenue Bonds and the electors’ right of referendum, and that the 
provision of forty-five (45) days within which to file a referendum petition is adequate to insure that the 
City’s electors may exercise their legal rights of referendum, and the newspaper named for publication is 
hereby determined to reach the largest number of persons to whom the notice is directed. 

 
3. The City may incur expenditures for the Project prior to receipt of proceeds of the 

Revenue Bonds, and may advance moneys for that purpose from the funds of the System to be 
reimbursed from proceeds of the Revenue Bonds when available.     

 
4. The City hereby makes the following declaration of intent for the purpose of complying 

with the reimbursement rules of Treas. Reg. § 1.150-2 pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended: 

(a) As of the date hereof, the City reasonably expects to reimburse itself with the 
proceeds of debt to be incurred by the City for costs of the Project that were or 
will be paid subsequent to sixty (60) days prior to the date hereof. 

(b) The maximum principal amount of debt expected to be issued for the Project is 
$2,145,000.   

(c) The expenditures described above are “capital expenditures” as defined in 
Treasury Regulation § 1.150-1(b), which are any costs of a type which are 
properly chargeable to a capital account (or would be so chargeable with a 
proper election or with the application of the definition of placed in service under 
Treas. Reg. § 1.150-2(c)) under general Federal income tax principles (as 
determined at the time the expenditure is paid). 

 
5. The City requests Robert W. Baird & Co., Incorporated to serve as Loan Facilitation 

Agent to assist the City in preparation and planning for the sale of the Revenue Bonds.  
 
6. The City requests Miller, Canfield, Paddock and Stone, P.L.C. (“Miller, Canfield”) to 

continue as bond counsel to the City for the Revenue Bonds.  The City recognizes that Miller, Canfield 
has represented from time to time, and currently represents, the Michigan Finance Authority and various 
underwriters, financial institutions and other potential participants in the financing process for unrelated 
projects, any of which might offer to purchase the Revenue Bonds.  The City requests Miller, Canfield to 
continue as bond counsel, notwithstanding the potential concurrent representation of any such potential 
participant regarding any unrelated matter. 

 
7. The Finance Director is authorized to apply to a rating agency for a credit assessment if 

necessary to comply with requirements to participate in the State Revolving Fund program. 
 
8. The officers, administrators, agents and attorneys of the City are authorized and directed 

to take all other actions necessary and convenient to facilitate preparation of the Revenue Bonds for sale.  
The Revenue Bonds will be sold only after the City Council approves a resolution or ordinance 
authorizing issuance and sale of the Revenue Bonds.  

 
9. All resolutions and parts of resolutions, insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this 

resolution, are hereby rescinded.   
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Law. 



Draft 14 02-18-2020 

 
Roll Call Vote.  
 
AYES:  Mayor Pro-Tem Osika, Councilmembers Bailey, Haber, Fear, Law, and Mayor Eveleth. 
 
NAYS:  None. 
 
ABSENT: Councilmember Pidek. 
 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Treena M. Chick, City Assessor.  March Board of Review – Assessment Changes. 
N. Bradley Hissong, Building Official.  January 2020 Building Department Report. 
N. Bradley Hissong Building Official.  January 2020 Code Violations Report. 
N. Bradley Hissong Building Official.  January 2020 Inspection Report. 
N. Bradley Hissong Building Official.  January 2020 Certificates Issued Report. 
Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  January 2020 Police Report. 
Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  January 2020 Fire Report. 
DDA/Main Street Board.  Minutes of January 8, 2020. 
Historical Commission.  Minutes of January 13, 2020. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 
Tom Manke, 2910 W. M-21, thanked the City for hiring Albert Martenis III as the new Historical Properties 
Director and he asked once again why the millage rate is not included in the City’s March bond request.  
City Clerk Amy K. Kirkland noted that the millage rate is indeed included in the question as it is required 
by law. 
 
Eddie Urban, 601 Glenwood Avenue, spoke about a recent article he had read regarding control of feral 
cat populations and how was recently stopped by the State Police in his own yard because he looked 
suspicious. 
 
Mr. Manke apologized for not seeing the millage rate in the ballot question. 
 
Councilmember Bailey thanked the high school students in attendance this evening.  She also reminded 
everyone that there will be a shelter making project here at City Hall this Sunday for anyone that is 
interested. 
 
Councilmember Law announced that on March 15th the Shiawassee County Fire Fighters’ Memorial 
Committee will be hosting a 9 Pin, No Tap bowling tournament as a fund raiser for the memorial. 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 
Monday, March 02, 2020 
 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 
 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority – County Representative – term expires 06-30-2020 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2022 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2021 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority – term expires June 30, 2022 
Downtown Loan Committee – Bank Representative - term expires June 30, 2021 
Historical Commission – 2 terms expire December 31, 2020 



Draft 15 02-18-2020 

Planning Commission – term expires June 30, 2020 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Osika  for adjournment at 8:06 p.m. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Fear and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 
 
 
     __________________________________________  
     Christopher T. Eveleth, Mayor 
 
 
     __________________________________________  
     Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk 
 
 

*Due to their length, text of marked items is not included in the minutes.  Full text of these documents is on 
file in the Clerk's Office. 
 



2020 Street Millage Ballot Question:  
March 10, 2020 Election

Overview
• In December, 2019 City Council voted to place a 

$10 million bond issue on the March, 2020 ballot.
• The first $10 million bond measure passed in 

2016 will be exhausted by 2023 as street projects 
are completed
– After this year’s projects are completed, the city will 

have expended $8,800,000 of the 2016 bond measure
– Including special assessments, grants, ACT 51 dollars, 

water/sewer funds, and Township payments, the city 
has invested $18,000,000 into streets and utilities 
under those streets.



10

9
Good

8

7

6

Fair 5

4

3

Poor 2

1

5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50

PASER Rating

Years

40% drop in quality 
over the first 15 
years of street life

Another 20% drop in 
quality over the next 5

years of street life

Resurfacing costs
$500,000 per mile 

here (2020)

Critical PASER

Reconstruction costs 
$4,000,000 per mile 

here (2020)

Owosso

10

9
Good

8

7

6

Fair 5

4

3

Poor 2

1

5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50

PASER Rating

Years

5.66 Average PASER Rating  
Result of 2016 bond program 

5.35 Average PASER Rating
Before 2016 bond



• 2016 Streets Bond Projects
– $10,000,000 

• 2016 bond money
– $2,686,615

• Special Assessments
– $3,146,931

• Grants

– Water
• $6,760,904

– Sewer
• $525,093

– MISC
• $135,124

– Streets
• $15,968,670

– TOTAL
• $23,254,667
(2016 – year end 2023)

$2,686,615

$3,146,931

$10,000,000

$6,760,904

$525,093 $135,124

2016 Street Bond Projects Including 
Utilities (2016-2023)

Spec Assess. Grant Bond Water Sewer MISC

Effect on Overall Street System Condition

• Every three years the City Engineer conducts a PASER survey 
of all city streets.
– PASER is a scale of 1-10 (worst to best)

• 2016 bond measure has improved the overall condition rating 
of the street system by 6%
– This was predicted by Dr. Abass Butt in his 2013 presentation to City 

Council.

5.6

5.4
5.35

5.66

2013 2014 2017 2019

Average PASER Rating



Changes in PASER Ratings

0.6%
0.4%

-2.9%

9.2%

-1.1%

3.4%

-6.7%

-2.1% -2.2%

1.4%

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

2014 - 2017

ExcellentGoodFairPoorFailed

-0.2% -1.1%
-1.5%

1.9% 1.9%

-2.2%

-3.9%

-1.6% -0.6%

7.4%

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

2017 - 2019

ExcellentGoodFairPoorFailed



0.4%

-0.7%
-4.4%

11.1%

0.8% 1.2%

-10.5%

-3.7% -2.8%

8.8%

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

2014 to 2019

ExcellentGoodFairPoorFailed

2020 Street Bond

10

9
Good

8

7

6

Fair 5

4

3

Poor 2

1

5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50

PASER Rating

Years

5.66 Average PASER Rating  
Result of 2016 bond program 

5.35 Average PASER Rating
Before 2016 bond

6.11 Average PASER Rating (2024)  
Estimated result of 2020 bond 

program 



0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

2016

2020

2026

PASER RATING

M
IL

ES

Result of another $10 million street bond

Conclusions
• 2016 street bond brought overall condition of 

system to what it was in 2013 (FAIR).
• An additional $10 million bond passed in 2020 

would improve the overall condition of the 
system to GOOD

• No additional bond money would reduce the 
condition of the system over time even 
considering Owosso’s annual ACT 51 revenue the 
city receives from the state gas tax
– At first, conditions would decline quickly to meet pre-

2016 bond measure conditions (FAIR)
– After about 5 years, the overall street condition for 

the city will be rated POOR



How Much Will This Cost Me?

If the taxable value on your home is 
$50,000, this would cost you 

approximately $128 per year, or  
just over $10 per month.

* Based on the estimated millage to be levied in 2021 of 2.5689 mills ($2.5689 
per $1,000 of taxable value)



      
 
DATE: February 26, 2020 
 
TO: City Council   
  
FROM: Glenn M. Chinavare, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Revision of Sec. 29-48 of the Code re: Streets Right of Way (ROW) Permit 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Conduct first reading and set a public hearing for Monday, March 2, 2020 at 7:30 p.m..  to receive citizen 
comment regarding the proposed amendment to Chapter 29, Streets, Sidewalks and Other Public 
Places, Article II, Streets, Division 2, Permits, Sec. 29-48, Performance bond, of the Code of Ordinances 
of the City of Owosso to remove the cash deposit option in lieu of a bond. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The long standing practice for issuing street ROW permits to contractors has involved the receipt of cash 
in the form of a $50.00 check, which was returned after satisfactory completion of work involving 
excavations within the street ROW.  This $50.00 surety is not sufficient to guarantee acceptable 
restoration of streets, and involves another monetary transaction that is costly in staff hours to process.     
 
Section 29-48 is hereby requested to be amended, eliminating the option of providing a cash deposit 
versus issuance of a performance bond and establishing new surety amounts. 
 
   
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
None 
 
Document originated by:  Glenn M. Chinavare, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
Attachment: (1) Resolution    

  

  330011  WW  MMAAIINN  SSTT      ••      OOWWOOSSSSOO,,  MMII      4488886677--22995588      ••      998899--772255--00555555      ••    FFAAXX    998899--772233--88885544  

AKKirkland
Text Box
This memo reprinted from the meeting of February 18, 2020.



ORDINANCE NO. 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 29-48, PERFORMANCE BOND, 
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 

TO REMOVE THE CASH DEPOSIT IN LIEU OF PERFORMANCE BOND OPTION 
 
WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Owosso adopted Ordinance No. 474 on May 22, 1990 establishing 
regulations governing the performance of work under, over, or upon any City street by an outside person, 
firm, or corporation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Director of Public Services has requested revision of Section 29-48 of Article II Streets, 
by removing certain language eliminating cash deposits in lieu of performance bonds, and proposing new 
performance bond surety amounts; and 
 
WHEREAS, City of Owosso staff recommends the ordinance be changed to update the provisions 
regarding performance bonds; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has conducted a public hearing on the proposed amendment and heard all 
interested persons. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY OF OWOSSO ORDAINS THAT: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Section 29-48. Performance bond, of Chapter 29, Streets, Sidewalks and 
Other Public Places, Article II, Streets, Division 2, Permits, is hereby amended to read: 
 
Sec. 29-48. - Performance bond.  
 
(a) As a prerequisite to the issuance of a permit for which application has been made under this article, 

the person, firm or corporation to whom or which the permit is to be issued shall file a bond with such 
sureties and in such amount as shown in the chart below and conditioned upon the following:  

(1) Complete and acceptable performance of the work authorized and covered by the permit;  

(2) Complete and acceptable performance of the conditions contained in the application for the 
permit; and  

(3) Compliance with all requirements of state, county and local laws and regulations. 

 
(b) The bond shall be submitted once per calendar year.  If all work performed during the permit year is 

satisfactory and in accordance with applicable rules and regulations, the bond shall be returned at the 
end of the calendar and/or permit year.  Failure to comply with the applicable rules and regulations, 
as well as satisfactory restoration requirements, shall result in drawing on the performance bond in 
the amounts of actual cost for the City of Owosso to make repairs, plus a $100 administration fee.   

 
(c)  In any case where the amount of the bond does not cover all costs and expenses of the city in the 

completion of the work authorized and covered by the permit, the deficit shall be paid by the person, 
firm or corporation to whom or which the permit is issued.  

 
SECTION 2.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This amendment shall become effective April 6, 2020. 
 
SECTION 3.  AVAILABILITY.  This ordinance may be purchased or inspected in the city clerk's office, 
Monday through Friday between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 

Amount Type of Work 
$2,000 Any work that does not require a street cut (driveway approach, sewer line repair, 

water line repair with work exclusively behind the curb) 
$5,000 Any work that requires a street cut (sewer repair in street) 



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
  

 
DATE: February 26, 2020 
 
TO: City Council 
  
FROM: Glenn M. Chinavare, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
SUBJECT: Emergency Repair - Tertiary Pump at Waste Water Treatment Facility 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approval of emergency repair services from Professional Pump Incorporated, of Belleville, MI in the amount of 
$12,180.00. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Staff received competitive quotes for pump inspection services from three sources, with Professional Pump 
being the low responsive quote.  A purchase order in the amount of $2,460.00 was issued on February 5, 2020 
for these services.  Staff subsequently pulled and delivered the tertiary pump to Professional Pump. 
 
Upon dismantling the pump, it was discovered that the pump would require rebuilding.  Due to the long lead 
time for repair parts, Professional Pump was given the go ahead to begin ordering the necessary components for 
rebuilding.  This particular pump is the back-up for the three tertiary towers, and with the wet season of March 
and April soon to be here, this back-up pump is needed should another pump became inoperable. 
 
Waiver of the competitive solicitation process per the city purchasing policy is requested due to the necessity 
and urgency for repair of this specialized equipment.        
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
Services will be funded from the FY2019-2020 Wastewater Fund Account 599-548-833.000.     
 
Document originated by: Glenn M. Chinavare, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
 
 
Attachments: (1) Resolution  
            (2) Professional Pump Proposal 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING EMERGENCY REPAIR SERVICES OF  
THE BACK-UP TERTIARY PUMP AT THE WWTP  

BY PROFESSIONAL PUMP, INC. OF BELLEVILLE, MICHIGAN  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, is required to provide biological treatment 
of wastewater for the city and regional customers in compliance with the NPDES discharge permit issued 
by the state of Michigan, and 
 
WHEREAS, the ability to pump and treat wastewater on demand is compromised when specialized 
process equipment becomes inoperable, and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Director of Public Services and Utilities has reviewed the necessity for the repair of 
the back-up tertiary pump for the WWTP, and has verified the necessity to restore the pump to full and 
reliable operating condition, and recommends authorizing Professional Pump, Inc. to provide this repair, 
rebuild service in the amount of $12,180.00. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that:  
 

FIRST: The city of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to enter into a purchased services agreement with Professional Pump, Inc. 
of Belleville, Michigan for a repair of the tertiary pump, and to waive the competitive 
solicitation process as normally required by the city purchasing policy.  

 
SECOND:  The accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to Professional Pump, 

Inc. in the amount of $12,180.00 upon satisfactory delivery of the rebuilt pump. 
 
THIRD: The above expenses shall be paid from account no. 599-548-833.000.   
 

 











 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958   WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
   

       
 
DATE: February 26, 2020 
 
TO: City Council 
  
FROM: Glenn M. Chinavare, Director of Public Services 
 
SUBJECT: Automatic Meter Reading System (AMR) - Aclara ONE System Upgrade 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approval of the proposal from Aclara of St. Louis, Missouri to upgrade the current water meter reading system 
to the Aclara ONE system, in the amount of $19,500.00.      
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The existing water meter reading system (NCC/STAR) will be phased out in the near future.  The Aclara ONE 
System will provide much improved system management reports and troubleshooting capabilities for metered 
accounts.  In addition, the Aclara ONE System will receive and transmit from the oldest to the most current 
meter antenna configuration, whereas the NCC/STAR System cannot. 
 
The $19,500.00 is a one-time system upgrade implementation & system integration fee.  Staff has also 
successfully negotiated for reduced annual system maintenance fees in the three year period following the 
Aclara ONE upgrade.  This will result in a cost avoidance of $24,950.00.    
     
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
System upgrade will be funded from the FY2019-2020 Water Fund 591-901-972.000 and Sewer Fund 590-901-
973.000.  
 
 
 
Attachments: (1) Resolution 
           (2) ACLARA Project Pricing Proposal   
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 

 
APPROVAL OF PROPOSAL PROVIDED BY ACLARA OF ST. LOUIS, MISSOURI  

TO UPGRADE THE WATER METER READING SYSTEM TO ACLARA ONE  
FOR USE IN THE WATER BILLING DEPARTMENT 

 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, entered into a contract for the installation of 
an automatic meter reading (AMR) Fixed Network Administrator system with Aclara by the adoption of 
Resolution 37-2017 on March 20, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city and Director of Public Services & Utilities desires to upgrade the AMR system to Aclara 
ONE to avoid obsolescence of system support and to enhance management reporting tools and metered 
account troubleshooting capabilities not currently available in the existing NCC/STAR AMR system.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The city of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to upgrade the existing NCC/STAR AMR Fixed Network Administrator 
system to the Aclara ONE AMR system in the amount of $19,500.00. 

 
SECOND: The accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to Aclara of St. Louis, 

Missouri in the amount not to exceed $19,500.00.   
 
THIRD: The above expenses shall be paid from the FY2019-2020 Water Fund and Sewer Fund. 

 
  

 



Aclara
77 West Port Plaza, Suite 500
St. Louis, MO 63146
US
Phone: (800) 297-2728

 
 

Quotation
 

Quote #: Q-12908-1
Created Date: 2/18/2020 3:48 PM
Expiration Date: 3/19/2020
Endpoints for Software: 6500

 

  

Bill To End Customer
Glenn Chinavare
Owosso, City of (MI)
522 Milwaukee St.
Owosso, MI 48867
US
(989) 725-0555
glenn.chinavare@ci.owosso.mi.us

Owosso, City of (MI)

 

 
Prepared By Phone EMAIL PAYMENT METHOD
Tyler Simpson tsimpson@aclara.com Net 30

 

Implementation Fees (One-Time)

Product Description Part No. Qty Sale Price Extended Price

AclaraONE -Unified HE -Host Implementation SW-3010H 1.00 USD 19,500.00 USD 19,500.00

Sub-Total USD 19,500.00 
 
 
Total USD 19,500.00 

 
 
Notes
 

Page 1 of 2



 
TERMS & CONDITIONS
General Note:
This Proposal/Quotation is based upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Aclara Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales for
Equipment and certain services that are available on Aclara’s website at:
http://www.aclara.com/terms-and-conditions/

1. ADDITIONAL TERMS:
Each Line Item will be shipped within the number of weeks staged after receipt of an acceptable order. 

2. This quotation is based upon receipt and acceptance of an order by the earlier of the Expiration Date in the
upper right or 60-days after the Proposal Date contained herein. 

3. Seller shall deliver Equipment to Buyer FCA Seller’s Facility or warehouse (Incoterms 2010.) Seller will
arrange freight on Buyer’s behalf. 

4. Buyer shall pay Seller’s standard Material Handling charges. 
5. Sales tax will be charged unless the customer provides/has provided a valid Sales Tax Exemption or Reseller

certificate. 
6. Total Extended price shown excludes any applicable Sales Tax. 
7. Software subject to 5% annual escalation starting year 2
8. AclaraONE configuration based on total system size as shown above. Final AclaraONE configuration will be

determined by working in conjunction with IT staff at the beginning of each contract year and pricing adjusted
accordingly for that year. If optional software is selected, a Software License Agreement amendment will be
required.

9. IF BUYER ACCEPTS THIS QUOTE AND WILL ISSUE ACLARA A SEPARATE PURCHASE ORDER BASED THEREON, DO NOT
RETURN A SIGNED COPY OF THIS QUOTE.
RETURNING BOTH A SIGNED QUOTE AND SEPARATE PURCHASE ORDER WILL RESULT IN THE
BUYER BEING BILLED FOR TWO ORDERS. 

To place an order, please send a signed copy of your Purchase Order referencing this quotation to
OrdersContracts@aclara.com
 

If there is no Purchase Order, enter N/A in PO Number, your signature, and your Ship To Street
Address (P.O. Box not allowed) to acknowledge that this quote form will be used in lieu of PO.

 
Signature:

/Signature/  
          Effective Date:

/Date/
______/______/______

 
Name (Print):

/Name/  
          Title:

 
/Title/

 
PO Number *: 

 
/PO/

 
 

 

   
 

 

 
 
* Ship To:

   
 
  Street:
 

 

 
  City, State Zip:
 

 

 
* If there is no purchase order, Ship To address must be entered.

 

Aclara Confidential / Proprietary Information
 

Seller’s above quote is expressly made conditional on the Buyer’s assent to all of the terms and conditions
located at  http://www.aclara.com/terms-and-conditions . By issuing a Purchase Order or Order to Seller

based on this Quote, Buyer hereby represents and affirms that it has reviewed and assents to these
terms and conditions.  ADDITIONAL TERMS CONTAINED ON ANY PURCHASE ORDER ARE HEREBY
REJECTED UNLESS SPECIFICALLY AGREED TO IN WRITING BY ACLARA (SELLER) and BUYER.

Page 2 of 2

http://www.aclara.com/terms-and-conditions/
mailto:orderscontracts@aclara.com
http://www.aclara.com/terms-and-conditions


 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
  

301 W MAIN  ∙  OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958 ∙  WWW.CI .OWOSSO.MI .US 

  
 
 
 

 
DATE: February 26, 2020 
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM:  Glenn Chinavare, Director of Public Services & Utilities  
 
SUBJECT:  Purchase of Pickup Trucks - MiDeal State Contract #071B7700180 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approval to purchase two (2) 2020 Ford F250 Pickup Trucks from Signature Ford of Owosso, Michigan, in the 
amount of $53,842.00.00.   
  
BACKGROUND:  
 
This vehicle purchase will replace pickups #303 and #304 purchased in 1997 and 1998 respectively.  The 
useful and safe service lives of these vehicles have expired, and they are no longer economical to maintain.   
 
Waiver of the competitive bidding process in accordance with the city of Owosso Purchasing Policy is hereby 
recommended to take advantage of MiDeal State Contract competitive pricing. 
          
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
The quoted price of $26,921.00 for each vehicle totaling $53,842.00 will be funded from the FY2019-2020 
Fleet Motor Pool Fund 661-901-979.000.  Contingency costs estimated at $2,000.00 to cover transportation & 
delivery expenses and/or unplanned configuration changes.    
 
  
 
 
Attachments: (1) Resolution 
           (2) MiDeal Contract  
  (3) Signature Ford Quote 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING PURCHASE AGREEMENTS TO 
SIGNATURE FORD OF OWOSSO, MICHIGAN TO PROCURE TWO FORD F250 PICKUP TRUCKS 

FOR USE IN THE FLEET MOTOR POOL 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has budgeted from the Fleet Motor Pool 
Replacement Fund for the replacement of a pickup trucks used for the maintenance of streets and other 
community public works services, and 
 
WHEREAS, the existing pickup trucks #303 and #304 are at end of their useful service life and, no longer 
cost efficient to maintain, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso Director of Public Services & Utilities has reviewed the replacement 
equipment on the State of Michigan MiDeal Contract as priced by Owosso Motors, Inc. d/b/a Signature 
Ford Lincoln Mercury of Owosso, Michigan, and recommends authorizing a purchase agreement between 
the city of Owosso and Signature Ford for the acquisition of two (2) 2020 Ford F250 pickup trucks, on 
State of Michigan MiDeal Contract No. 071B7700180, in the amount of $53,842.00. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that:  
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to contract with Owosso Motors, Inc. d/b/a Signature Ford Lincoln Mercury 
for the purchase of two (2) 2020 Ford F250 pickup trucks, on State of Michigan MiDeal 
Contract No. 071B7700180, for use in the Fleet Motor Pool, in the amount of $53,842.00.  

 
SECOND: The accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to Owosso Motors, 

Inc. d/b/a Signature Ford Lincoln Mercury of Owosso, Michigan in the amount of 
$53,842.00, plus contingency funds in the amount of $2,000.00 for transportation & 
delivery expenses and unplanned configuration changes for a total of $55,842.00 upon 
satisfactory delivery of said vehicles. 

 
THIRD: The above expenses shall be paid from account no. 661-901-979.000.  

 















 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
  

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958   WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 
DATE: March 2, 2020 
 
TO: Mayor Eveleth and the Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Nathan Henne, City Manager and Planning Commission 
  
SUBJECT: 2019 Planning Annual Report 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
The Planning Commission recommends the approval of the 2019 Planning Commission Annual Report 
per 125.319 (2) of the Michigan Planning Enabling Act 33 of 2008. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
As a requirement of the MEDC and RRC programs an annual report is required to be submitted by the 
Planning Commission to the City Council.  This report shows the past year in review, Planning 
Commission and Zoning Board of Appeals meetings and attendance, and the Progress Report for the 
RRC. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
None. 



 

 

 

 

2019  
PLANNING 

ANNUAL REPORT 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION: 

1. Membership 

 
MEMBER 

 
TITLE 

 
TERM 

EXPIRES 

JANAE FEAR Secretary 06-30-2021 
FRANCIS LIVINGSTON Vice Chair 06-30-2021 

DANIEL LAW Council Rep 11-09-2020 
WILLIAM WASCHER Chair 06-30-2021 

THOMAS TAYLOR ZBA Rep. 
Commissioner 06-30-2020 

PETE YERIAN Commissioner 06-30-2022 
LINDA ROBERTSON Commissioner 06-30-2022 

 

2. Attendance 

 Wascher Adams Fear Jenkins Law Lafferty Livingston Taylor Kirkland Yerian Robertson 

Jan No Meeting 

Feb X X X   X X X  X    

Mar No Meeting 

Apr    X   X Resigned X X X    

May X X X X X  X X X    

Jun No Meeting 

Jul X  X  X  X X  X  

Aug X X  X X  X X  X   

Sept 
 

X Resigned X X X   X  X  X 

Oct No Meeting  

Nov No Meeting 

Dec No Meeting 
X = present 

3. Meetings 

Planning Commission meetings are held the 4th Monday of each month, except as noted at 

6:30 p.m. 

 

Meeting Date Agenda Items 

January 28  Meeting cancelled due to weather  
February 25  Sign ordinance - amendments 

 Medical Marihuana Ordinance amendments – Public Hearing 
 Industrial district outdoor storage height and screening requirements – Public 

Hearing 
 2019-25 Capital Improvements – present and action 
 2018 Planning Commission annual report – present and action 
 Recreational marijuana – discussion 

March 25  Meeting cancelled 
April 22  Site plan review – J&H Family Store at 917 E Main St 
May 28  Site plan review – Memorial Healthcare for new addition to the hospital 

complex 



 Site plan review – Consumers Energy for replacing gas regulator facility  
June 24 Cancelled due to lack of agenda items 

July 22  Site Plan Review Ordinance amendments to allow for administrative reviews 

 Sign Ordinance amendments 

 Recreational marijuana - discussion 

August 26  Site plan review for Woodworth Commercial at 501 W Main St 

 Set public hearing for Site Plan Review and Sign Ordinance amendments 

 Master plan update 

September 23  Public hearings for site plan review and sign ordinance amendments 

October 21 Cancelled due to lack of agenda items 

November 25 Cancelled due to lack of agenda items 

December 9 Cancelled due to lack of agenda items 

 

4. Master Plan Review 

CIB Planning, Inc. of Fenton, Michigan is in the process of updating the Master Plan.  A draft of the plan should be 

available in January or February. 

 

5. Zoning Ordinance Amendments 

 

a. Zoning ordinance: 

 

Section Amendment/Addition Status 

Section 16.5 Amendment – Medical marihuana  Approved 

Section 38-292 Amendment – Industrial district – outdoor storage 
height and screening requirements 

Approved 

Chapter 26 Amendments to sign ordinance Approved 

Section 38-390 Amendments to the site plan ordinance to allow for 
administrative site plan reviews 

Approved 

 

b. Rezoning Requests: 

None requested in 2019 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

1. Membership: 

 

MEMBER TITLE TERM EXPIRES 

RANDY HORTON Chair 6-20-2020 

THOMAS TAYLOR PC Representative 6-30-2021 

CHRISTOPHER EVELETH 
Vice Chair 

Council Representative 
11-14-2022 

KENT TELESZ  6-30-2022 

MATTHEW GRUBB Secretary 6-30-2021 

MICHAEL BRUFF Alternate 06-30-2021 

ROBERT TEICH Alternate 06-30-2022 

 

 

 



 

 

2. Attendance 

 Horton Eveleth Taylor Telesz Bruff Teich Grubb 

Jan No Meeting 

Feb No Meeting 

Mar No Meeting 

Apr No Meeting 

May X  X  X  X 

Jun No Meeting 

Jul X  X X X   

Aug No Meeting 

Sept No Meeting 

Oct No Meeting 

Nov No Meeting 

Dec No Meeting 

  X = present 

3. Meetings: 

Zoning Board of Appeals meetings are held the 3rd Tuesday of each month, except as noted at 

9:30 a.m. 

 

Meeting Date Agenda Items 

January 15 Cancelled due to lack of agenda items 

February 19 Cancelled due to lack of agenda items 

March 19 Cancelled due to lack of agenda items  
April 16 Cancelled due to lack of agenda items  
May 21  917 E Main St – (2) variance requests – 11% variance to the percentage of 

windows and variance to landscape requirements.  Window variance was 
tabled until the next meeting.  Landscape variance was approved to allow for 
stamped concrete along the building instead of bushes, etc.  Window variance 
was later removed as they were able meet the requirement. 

June 18 Cancelled due to lack of agenda items 

July 16  819 N Shiawassee St – Memorial Healthcare 3 story building addition to the 
complex.  (2) variance requests for exceeding building height and parking lot – 
approved. 

August 20 Cancelled due to lack of agenda items 

September 17 Cancelled due to lack of agenda items 

October 15 Cancelled due to lack of agenda items 

November 19 Cancelled due to lack of agenda items 

December 17 Cancelled due to lack of agenda items 

 

TRAINING 

None held in 2019 

 



JOINT MEETINGS 

None held in 2019 

 

REDEVELOPMENT READY COMMUNITIES: 

 Report of Findings Progress Report  Progress Report 

Criteria  August 1, 2017 October 1, 2018*  

Best Practice 1.1: The Plans      

The governing body has 
adopted a master plan in the 
past five years.  N  N  Currently working on 

The governing body has 
adopted a downtown plan.  N  N  Currently working on 

The governing body has 
adopted a corridor plan.        

The governing body has 
adopted a capital improvements 
plan.  N  N  Y (Feb. 2020) 

Best Practice 1.2: Public 
Participation      

The community has a public 
participation plan for engaging a 
diverse set of community 
stakeholders.  N  Y   Y 

The community demonstrates 
that public participation efforts 
go beyond the basic methods.  Y  Y   Y 

The community shares 
outcomes of public participation 
processes.  N  Y   Y 

Best Practice 2.1: Zoning 
Regulations      

The governing body has 
adopted a zoning ordinance 
that aligns with the goals of the 
current master plan.  N  N  Will occur after MP update 

The zoning ordinance provides 
for areas of concentrated 
development in appropriate 
locations and encourages the 
type and form of development 
desired.  N  N  Will occur after MP update 

The zoning ordinance includes 
flexible zoning tools to 
encourage development and 
redevelopment.  Y  Y   Y 

The zoning ordinance allows for 
a variety of housing options.  Y  Y   Y 

The zoning ordinance includes 
standards to improve non•-
motorized transportation.  N  N  Will occur after MP update 

The zoning ordinance includes 
flexible parking requirements.  N  N  Will occur after MP update 



The zoning ordinance includes 
standards for green 
infrastructure.  N  N  Will occur after MP update 

The zoning ordinance is user•-
friendly.  N  N  Will occur after MP update 

 
Best Practice 3.1: Development 
Review Policy and Procedures      

The zoning ordinance articulates 
a thorough site plan review 
process.  Y  Y   Y 

The community has a qualified 
intake professional.  Y  Y   Y 

The community defines and 
offers conceptual site plan 
review meetings for applicants.  N  N  Y: Complete & on website 

The community encourages a 
developer to seek input from 
neighboring residents and 
businesses at the onset of the 
application process.  N  Y   Y 

The appropriate departments 
engage in joint site plan 
reviews.  Y  Y Y 

 The community has a clearly 
documented internal staff 
review policy.  N  N  

Implemented BS&A 
tracking 

The community promptly acts 
on development requests.  N  N  

Implemented BS&A 
tracking 

The community has a method to 
track development projects.  N  N  

Implemented BS&A 
tracking 

The community annually 
reviews the successes and 
challenges with the site plan 
review and approval 
procedures.  N  N   N 

Best Practice 3.2: Guide to 
Development      

The community maintains an 
online guide to development 
that explains policies, 
procedures and steps to obtain 
approvals.  N  N  Y: Complete & on website 

The community annually 
reviews the fee schedule.  N  Y  Y: Complete & on website 

Best Practice 4.1: Recruitment 
and Orientation      

The community sets 
expectations for board and 
commission positions.  N  N  Currently working on 

The community provides 
orientation packets to all 
appointed and elected 
members of development 
related boards and 
commissions.  N  N  

Currently working on: 
orientation packet for 
Council is complete 

Best Practice 4.2: Education 
and Training      



The community has a dedicated 
source of funding for training.  Y  Y  Y 

The community identifies 
training needs and tracks 
attendance of the governing 
body, boards, commissions and 
staff.  N  N  Implemented 

The community encourages the 
governing body, boards, 
commissions and staff to attend 
trainings.  Y  Y  Y 

The community shares 
information between the 
governing body, boards, 
commissions and staff.  N  N  

Currently planning a joint 
meeting 

Best Practice 5.1: 
Redevelopment Ready Sites      

The community identifies and 
prioritizes redevelopment sites.  N  N  Will occur with MP update 

The community gathers 
preliminary background 
information for prioritized 
redevelopment sites.  N  N  N 

The community has 
development a vision for the 
priority redevelopment sites.  N  N  N 

The community identifies 
available resources and 
incentives for prioritized 
redevelopment sites.  N  N  N 

A property information package 
for the prioritized 
redevelopment site(s) is 
assembled.  N  N  N 

Prioritized redevelopment sites 
are actively marketed.  N  N  N 

Best Practice 6.1: Economic 
Development Strategy      

The community has approved 
an economic development 
strategy.  N  N  N 

The community annually 
reviews the economic 
development strategy.  N  N  N 

Best Practice 6.2: Marketing 
and Promotion      

The community has developed a 
marketing strategy.  N  N  N 

The community has an updated, 
user•-friendly municipal 
website.  N  N  N 

*Status as of October Quarterly Review 

Staff is actively working on items on the above list. 



*NOTE: Available Balance / Pct Budget Used does not reflect amounts encumbered.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF OWOSSO 1/15Page: 02/21/2020 04:59 PM
User: CAGrice
DB: Owosso PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2020

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 01/31/2020

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2020

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
71.34 2,220,067.04 284,608.82 5,527,091.96 7,747,159.00   000 - REVENUE

71.34 2,220,067.04 284,608.82 5,527,091.96 7,747,159.00   TOTAL REVENUES

52.54 2,515.40 0.00 2,784.60 5,300.00   101 - CITY COUNCIL

60.97 55,247.13 17,430.92 86,310.87 141,558.00   171 - CITY MANAGER

58.27 114,088.68 28,298.87 159,331.32 273,420.00   201 - FINANCE

55.95 62,571.95 15,052.89 79,467.05 142,039.00   209 - ASSESSING

59.09 47,045.78 9,602.32 67,954.22 115,000.00   210 - CITY ATTORNEY

55.82 124,480.76 26,500.61 157,248.24 281,729.00   215 - CLERK

60.54 85,441.39 24,859.74 131,058.61 216,500.00   226 - HUMAN RESOURCES

58.23 64,003.70 14,827.13 89,211.30 153,215.00   253 - TREASURY

41.59 59,395.23 7,950.79 42,299.77 101,695.00   258 - INFORMATION & TECHNOLOGY

55.55 60,133.78 16,203.38 75,154.22 135,288.00   265 - BUILDING & GROUNDS

66.99 102,361.93 (636.49)207,718.07 310,080.00   299 - GENERAL ADMIN

62.99 746,550.57 225,731.14 1,270,568.43 2,017,119.00   300 - POLICE

64.83 690,080.56 195,489.95 1,272,086.44 1,962,167.00   335 - FIRE

56.76 96,775.74 25,872.46 127,060.26 223,836.00   370 - BUILDING AND SAFETY

54.16 281,388.85 66,307.11 332,468.15 613,857.00   441 - PUBLIC WORKS

79.20 46,053.89 3,437.68 175,309.11 221,363.00   528 - LEAF AND BRUSH COLLECTION

57.37 14,082.27 9,744.36 18,947.73 33,030.00   585 - PARKING

74.67 17,092.42 24,672.76 50,393.58 67,486.00   728 - COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

52.62 109,252.80 1,911.08 121,347.20 230,600.00   756 - PARKS

63.28 184,282.69 7,199.33 317,594.31 501,877.00   966 - TRANSFERS OUT

61.76 2,962,845.52 720,456.03 4,784,313.48 7,747,159.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES



*NOTE: Available Balance / Pct Budget Used does not reflect amounts encumbered.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF OWOSSO 2/15Page: 02/21/2020 04:59 PM
User: CAGrice
DB: Owosso PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2020

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 01/31/2020

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2020

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND

100.00 (742,778.48)(435,847.21)742,778.48 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

61.76 2,962,845.52 720,456.03 4,784,313.48 7,747,159.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
71.34 2,220,067.04 284,608.82 5,527,091.96 7,747,159.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND:

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREET FUND
64.77 913,837.91 641,306.98 1,680,214.09 2,594,052.00   000 - REVENUE

64.77 913,837.91 641,306.98 1,680,214.09 2,594,052.00   TOTAL REVENUES

61.57 595,623.77 60,053.73 954,376.23 1,550,000.00   451 - CONSTRUCTION

76.48 55,516.77 7,750.84 180,483.23 236,000.00   463 - STREET MAINTENANCE

0.00 11,470.00 0.00 0.00 11,470.00   473 - BRIDGE MAINTENANCE

43.71 13,958.92 178.67 10,841.08 24,800.00   474 - TRAFFIC SERVICES-MAINTENANCE

57.19 50,083.80 45,821.15 66,916.20 117,000.00   478 - SNOW & ICE CONTROL

102.46 (1,330.10)7,238.53 55,330.10 54,000.00   480 - TREE TRIMMING

39.30 129,695.08 14,828.89 83,980.92 213,676.00   482 - ADMINISTRATION & ENGINEERING

0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00   484 - TRUNKLINE SUPERVISOR

47.61 177,683.37 28,726.75 161,482.63 339,166.00   485 - LOCAL STREET TRANSFER

14.98 4,250.88 515.33 749.12 5,000.00   486 - TRUNKLINE SURFACE MAINTENANCE

27.89 1,838.77 0.00 711.23 2,550.00   488 - TRUNKLINE SWEEPING & FLUSHING

0.00 600.00 0.00 0.00 600.00   490 - TRUNKLINE TREE TRIIM & REMOVAL

1.09 8,407.04 0.00 92.96 8,500.00   491 - TRUNKLINE STORM DRAIN, CURBS

9.41 625.10 0.00 64.90 690.00   492 - TRUNKLINE ROADSIDE CLEANUP

42.49 460.10 0.00 339.90 800.00   494 - TRUNKLINE TRAFFIC SIGNS

0.00 800.00 0.00 0.00 800.00   496 - TRUNKLINE TRAFFIC SIGNALS

65.08 8,032.05 8,705.10 14,967.95 23,000.00   497 - TRUNKLINE SNOW & ICE CONTROL

0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00   502 - TRUNKLINE LEAVE & INS BENEFITS

58.99 1,063,715.55 173,818.99 1,530,336.45 2,594,052.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES



*NOTE: Available Balance / Pct Budget Used does not reflect amounts encumbered.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF OWOSSO 3/15Page: 02/21/2020 04:59 PM
User: CAGrice
DB: Owosso PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2020

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 01/31/2020

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2020

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREET FUND

100.00 (149,877.64)467,487.99 149,877.64 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

58.99 1,063,715.55 173,818.99 1,530,336.45 2,594,052.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
64.77 913,837.91 641,306.98 1,680,214.09 2,594,052.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREET FUND:

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREET FUND
91.91 189,675.00 563,387.08 2,156,006.00 2,345,681.00   000 - REVENUE

91.91 189,675.00 563,387.08 2,156,006.00 2,345,681.00   TOTAL REVENUES

77.23 372,626.16 32,310.42 1,264,055.84 1,636,682.00   451 - CONSTRUCTION

72.73 108,812.24 18,717.94 290,187.76 399,000.00   463 - STREET MAINTENANCE

18.02 7,624.52 440.56 1,675.48 9,300.00   474 - TRAFFIC SERVICES-MAINTENANCE

29.84 70,155.21 25,591.17 29,844.79 100,000.00   478 - SNOW & ICE CONTROL

75.29 18,777.39 6,615.03 57,222.61 76,000.00   480 - TREE TRIMMING

40.96 73,627.06 8,955.33 51,071.94 124,699.00   482 - ADMINISTRATION & ENGINEERING

72.22 651,622.58 92,630.45 1,694,058.42 2,345,681.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 (461,947.58)470,756.63 461,947.58 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

72.22 651,622.58 92,630.45 1,694,058.42 2,345,681.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
91.91 189,675.00 563,387.08 2,156,006.00 2,345,681.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREET FUND:

Fund 208 - PARK/RECREATION SITES FUND
93.78 7,779.28 1,796.73 117,220.72 125,000.00   000 - REVENUE

93.78 7,779.28 1,796.73 117,220.72 125,000.00   TOTAL REVENUES

0.00 125,000.00 0.00 0.00 125,000.00   756 - PARKS

0.00 125,000.00 0.00 0.00 125,000.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 (117,220.72)1,796.73 117,220.72 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 125,000.00 0.00 0.00 125,000.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
93.78 7,779.28 1,796.73 117,220.72 125,000.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 208 - PARK/RECREATION SITES FUND:



*NOTE: Available Balance / Pct Budget Used does not reflect amounts encumbered.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF OWOSSO 4/15Page: 02/21/2020 04:59 PM
User: CAGrice
DB: Owosso PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2020

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 01/31/2020

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2020

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 248 - DOWNTOWN FACADE PROGRAM
103.76 (6,446.21)11.93 177,932.21 171,486.00   000 - REVENUE

103.76 (6,446.21)11.93 177,932.21 171,486.00   TOTAL REVENUES

84.80 950.00 0.00 5,300.00 6,250.00   200 - GEN SERVICES

207.45 (177,539.25)0.00 342,775.25 165,236.00   901 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

202.98 (176,589.25)0.00 348,075.25 171,486.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 170,143.04 11.93 (170,143.04)0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

202.98 (176,589.25)0.00 348,075.25 171,486.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
103.76 (6,446.21)11.93 177,932.21 171,486.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 248 - DOWNTOWN FACADE PROGRAM:

Fund 273 - OMS/DDA REVLG LOAN FUND 
215.02 (12,839.07)7,803.98 24,001.07 11,162.00   000 - REVENUE

215.02 (12,839.07)7,803.98 24,001.07 11,162.00   TOTAL REVENUES

17,848.4(266,226.00)0.00 267,726.00 1,500.00   200 - GEN SERVICES

0.00 9,662.00 0.00 0.00 9,662.00   965 - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

2,398.55 (256,564.00)0.00 267,726.00 11,162.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 243,724.93 7,803.98 (243,724.93)0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

2,398.55 (256,564.00)0.00 267,726.00 11,162.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
215.02 (12,839.07)7,803.98 24,001.07 11,162.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 273 - OMS/DDA REVLG LOAN FUND :

Fund 275 - HOUSING & REDEVELOPMENT
100.00 (11.00)1.26 11.00 0.00   000 - REVENUE

100.00 (11.00)1.26 11.00 0.00   TOTAL REVENUES

100.00 (11.00)1.26 11.00 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 (11.00)1.26 11.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 275 - HOUSING & REDEVELOPMENT:

Fund 276 - OBRA FUND DISTRICT #16 - QDOBA
100.00 (49.69)5.42 49.69 0.00   000 - REVENUE



*NOTE: Available Balance / Pct Budget Used does not reflect amounts encumbered.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF OWOSSO 5/15Page: 02/21/2020 04:59 PM
User: CAGrice
DB: Owosso PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2020

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 01/31/2020

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2020

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 276 - OBRA FUND DISTRICT #16 - QDOBA

100.00 (49.69)5.42 49.69 0.00   TOTAL REVENUES

100.00 (490.00)0.00 490.00 0.00   730 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

100.00 (490.00)0.00 490.00 0.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 440.31 5.42 (440.31)0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

100.00 (490.00)0.00 490.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 (49.69)5.42 49.69 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 276 - OBRA FUND DISTRICT #16 - QDOBA:

Fund 283 - OBRA FUND-DISTRICT#3-CONAGRA
4.23 14,161.21 0.00 625.79 14,787.00   000 - REVENUE

4.23 14,161.21 0.00 625.79 14,787.00   TOTAL REVENUES

0.00 750.00 0.00 0.00 750.00   730 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

0.00 14,037.00 0.00 0.00 14,037.00   905 - DEBT SERVICE

0.00 14,787.00 0.00 0.00 14,787.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 (625.79)0.00 625.79 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 14,787.00 0.00 0.00 14,787.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
4.23 14,161.21 0.00 625.79 14,787.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 283 - OBRA FUND-DISTRICT#3-CONAGRA:

Fund 288 - OBRA FUND-DISTRICT #17 CARGILL (PREV #8)
0.00 111,495.00 0.00 0.00 111,495.00   000 - REVENUE

0.00 111,495.00 0.00 0.00 111,495.00   TOTAL REVENUES

5,966.36 (6,277.00)0.00 6,384.00 107.00   730 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

0.00 111,388.00 0.00 0.00 111,388.00   905 - DEBT SERVICE

5.73 105,111.00 0.00 6,384.00 111,495.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 6,384.00 0.00 (6,384.00)0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

5.73 105,111.00 0.00 6,384.00 111,495.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 111,495.00 0.00 0.00 111,495.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 288 - OBRA FUND-DISTRICT #17 CARGILL (PREV #8):



*NOTE: Available Balance / Pct Budget Used does not reflect amounts encumbered.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF OWOSSO 6/15Page: 02/21/2020 04:59 PM
User: CAGrice
DB: Owosso PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2020

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 01/31/2020

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2020

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 289 - OBRA:DISTRICT#9(ROBBIN'S LOFT)
5.80 2,814.75 0.00 173.25 2,988.00   000 - REVENUE

5.80 2,814.75 0.00 173.25 2,988.00   TOTAL REVENUES

0.00 1,100.00 0.00 0.00 1,100.00   730 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

0.00 1,888.00 0.00 0.00 1,888.00   964 - TAX REIMBURSEMENTS

0.00 2,988.00 0.00 0.00 2,988.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 (173.25)0.00 173.25 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 2,988.00 0.00 0.00 2,988.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
5.80 2,814.75 0.00 173.25 2,988.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 289 - OBRA:DISTRICT#9(ROBBIN'S LOFT):

Fund 291 - OBRA FUND-DIST#11(CAPITOL BOWL)
1.40 10,941.85 0.00 155.15 11,097.00   000 - REVENUE

1.40 10,941.85 0.00 155.15 11,097.00   TOTAL REVENUES

0.00 875.00 0.00 0.00 875.00   730 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

0.00 875.00 0.00 0.00 875.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

1.52 10,066.85 0.00 155.15 10,222.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 875.00 0.00 0.00 875.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
1.40 10,941.85 0.00 155.15 11,097.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 291 - OBRA FUND-DIST#11(CAPITOL BOWL):

Fund 292 - OBRA FUND-DIST#12(WOODARD LOFT
2.78 89,017.66 0.00 2,542.34 91,560.00   000 - REVENUE

2.78 89,017.66 0.00 2,542.34 91,560.00   TOTAL REVENUES

0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00   730 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

0.00 90,560.00 0.00 0.00 90,560.00   964 - TAX REIMBURSEMENTS

0.00 91,560.00 0.00 0.00 91,560.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

0.00 91,560.00 0.00 0.00 91,560.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
2.78 89,017.66 0.00 2,542.34 91,560.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 292 - OBRA FUND-DIST#12(WOODARD LOFT:



*NOTE: Available Balance / Pct Budget Used does not reflect amounts encumbered.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF OWOSSO 7/15Page: 02/21/2020 04:59 PM
User: CAGrice
DB: Owosso PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2020

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 01/31/2020

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2020

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 292 - OBRA FUND-DIST#12(WOODARD LOFT
100.00 (2,542.34)0.00 2,542.34 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

Fund 295 - OBRA-DIST#15 -ARMORY BUILDING
0.00 1,840.00 0.00 0.00 1,840.00   000 - REVENUE

0.00 1,840.00 0.00 0.00 1,840.00   TOTAL REVENUES

96.20 28.50 0.00 721.50 750.00   730 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

0.00 1,090.00 0.00 0.00 1,090.00   964 - TAX REIMBURSEMENTS

39.21 1,118.50 0.00 721.50 1,840.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 721.50 0.00 (721.50)0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

39.21 1,118.50 0.00 721.50 1,840.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 1,840.00 0.00 0.00 1,840.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 295 - OBRA-DIST#15 -ARMORY BUILDING:

Fund 297 - HISTORICAL FUND
61.54 33,157.05 7,263.00 53,046.95 86,204.00   000 - REVENUE

61.54 33,157.05 7,263.00 53,046.95 86,204.00   TOTAL REVENUES

38.27 37,690.91 1,666.83 23,363.09 61,054.00   797 - HISTORICAL COMMISSION

67.95 3,733.95 1,440.27 7,916.05 11,650.00   798 - CASTLE

95.08 614.57 2,046.29 11,885.43 12,500.00   799 - GOULD HOUSE

54.80 452.01 145.00 547.99 1,000.00   800 - COMSTOCK/WOODARD

50.71 42,491.44 5,298.39 43,712.56 86,204.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 (9,334.39)1,964.61 9,334.39 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

50.71 42,491.44 5,298.39 43,712.56 86,204.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
61.54 33,157.05 7,263.00 53,046.95 86,204.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 297 - HISTORICAL FUND:

Fund 298 - HISTORICAL SITES FUND
93.76 7,800.12 1,788.20 117,199.88 125,000.00   000 - REVENUE

93.76 7,800.12 1,788.20 117,199.88 125,000.00   TOTAL REVENUES

0.18 112,800.00 0.00 200.00 113,000.00   798 - CASTLE



*NOTE: Available Balance / Pct Budget Used does not reflect amounts encumbered.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF OWOSSO 8/15Page: 02/21/2020 04:59 PM
User: CAGrice
DB: Owosso PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2020

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 01/31/2020

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2020

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 298 - HISTORICAL SITES FUND
70.50 3,540.00 5,818.00 8,460.00 12,000.00   799 - GOULD HOUSE

100.00 (2,141.00)0.00 2,141.00 0.00   800 - COMSTOCK/WOODARD

8.64 114,199.00 5,818.00 10,801.00 125,000.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 (106,398.88)(4,029.80)106,398.88 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

8.64 114,199.00 5,818.00 10,801.00 125,000.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
93.76 7,800.12 1,788.20 117,199.88 125,000.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 298 - HISTORICAL SITES FUND:

Fund 325 - DEBT SERVICE-2010 GO BONDS
83.39 15,186.75 0.00 76,266.25 91,453.00   000 - REVENUE

83.39 15,186.75 0.00 76,266.25 91,453.00   TOTAL REVENUES

83.39 15,186.75 0.00 76,266.25 91,453.00   905 - DEBT SERVICE

83.39 15,186.75 0.00 76,266.25 91,453.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

83.39 15,186.75 0.00 76,266.25 91,453.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
83.39 15,186.75 0.00 76,266.25 91,453.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 325 - DEBT SERVICE-2010 GO BONDS:

Fund 327 - DEBT SERVICE
96.16 31,136.42 11,422.19 779,969.58 811,106.00   000 - REVENUE

96.16 31,136.42 11,422.19 779,969.58 811,106.00   TOTAL REVENUES

33.38 540,365.99 500.00 270,740.01 811,106.00   905 - DEBT SERVICE

33.38 540,365.99 500.00 270,740.01 811,106.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 (509,229.57)10,922.19 509,229.57 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

33.38 540,365.99 500.00 270,740.01 811,106.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
96.16 31,136.42 11,422.19 779,969.58 811,106.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 327 - DEBT SERVICE:

Fund 368 - 2009 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT
100.00 (715.50)0.00 715.50 0.00   000 - REVENUE



*NOTE: Available Balance / Pct Budget Used does not reflect amounts encumbered.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF OWOSSO 9/15Page: 02/21/2020 04:59 PM
User: CAGrice
DB: Owosso PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2020

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 01/31/2020

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2020

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 368 - 2009 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT
100.00 (715.50)0.00 715.50 0.00   TOTAL REVENUES

100.00 (715.50)0.00 715.50 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 (715.50)0.00 715.50 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 368 - 2009 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT:

Fund 370 - 2010 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT
100.00 (67.19)0.00 67.19 0.00   000 - REVENUE

100.00 (67.19)0.00 67.19 0.00   TOTAL REVENUES

100.00 (67.19)0.00 67.19 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 (67.19)0.00 67.19 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 370 - 2010 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT:

Fund 372 - 2011 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT
100.00 (5,736.67)1,489.98 5,736.67 0.00   000 - REVENUE

100.00 (5,736.67)1,489.98 5,736.67 0.00   TOTAL REVENUES

100.00 (5,736.67)1,489.98 5,736.67 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 (5,736.67)1,489.98 5,736.67 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 372 - 2011 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT:

Fund 374 - 2012 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT
100.00 (13,227.56)3,377.69 13,227.56 0.00   000 - REVENUE

100.00 (13,227.56)3,377.69 13,227.56 0.00   TOTAL REVENUES

100.00 (13,227.56)3,377.69 13,227.56 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 (13,227.56)3,377.69 13,227.56 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 374 - 2012 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT:

Fund 376 - 2013 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT
100.00 (2,405.47)0.00 2,405.47 0.00   000 - REVENUE



*NOTE: Available Balance / Pct Budget Used does not reflect amounts encumbered.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF OWOSSO 10/15Page: 02/21/2020 04:59 PM
User: CAGrice
DB: Owosso PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2020

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 01/31/2020

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2020

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 376 - 2013 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT

100.00 (2,405.47)0.00 2,405.47 0.00   TOTAL REVENUES

100.00 (2,405.47)0.00 2,405.47 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 (2,405.47)0.00 2,405.47 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 376 - 2013 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT:

Fund 382 - 2016 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT
100.00 (4,406.19)0.00 4,406.19 0.00   000 - REVENUE

100.00 (4,406.19)0.00 4,406.19 0.00   TOTAL REVENUES

100.00 (4,406.19)0.00 4,406.19 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 (4,406.19)0.00 4,406.19 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 382 - 2016 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT:

Fund 383 - 2017 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS
100.00 (66,738.07)11,518.23 66,738.07 0.00   000 - REVENUE

100.00 (66,738.07)11,518.23 66,738.07 0.00   TOTAL REVENUES

100.00 (66,738.07)11,518.23 66,738.07 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 (66,738.07)11,518.23 66,738.07 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 383 - 2017 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS:

Fund 384 - 2018 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS
100.00 (180,127.67)19,701.49 180,127.67 0.00   000 - REVENUE

100.00 (180,127.67)19,701.49 180,127.67 0.00   TOTAL REVENUES

100.00 (180,127.67)19,701.49 180,127.67 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 (180,127.67)19,701.49 180,127.67 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 384 - 2018 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS:



*NOTE: Available Balance / Pct Budget Used does not reflect amounts encumbered.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF OWOSSO 11/15Page: 02/21/2020 04:59 PM
User: CAGrice
DB: Owosso PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2020

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 01/31/2020

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2020

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 385 - 2019 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS
100.00 (189,439.29)11,627.30 189,439.29 0.00   000 - REVENUE

100.00 (189,439.29)11,627.30 189,439.29 0.00   TOTAL REVENUES

100.00 (189,439.29)11,627.30 189,439.29 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 (189,439.29)11,627.30 189,439.29 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 385 - 2019 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS:

Fund 397 - 2009 LTGO DEBT
19.91 60,886.75 0.00 15,136.25 76,023.00   000 - REVENUE

19.91 60,886.75 0.00 15,136.25 76,023.00   TOTAL REVENUES

19.91 60,886.75 0.00 15,136.25 76,023.00   905 - DEBT SERVICE

19.91 60,886.75 0.00 15,136.25 76,023.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

19.91 60,886.75 0.00 15,136.25 76,023.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
19.91 60,886.75 0.00 15,136.25 76,023.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 397 - 2009 LTGO DEBT:

Fund 401 - CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
128.95 (84,055.89)0.00 374,450.89 290,395.00   000 - REVENUE

128.95 (84,055.89)0.00 374,450.89 290,395.00   TOTAL REVENUES

40.35 193,705.20 6,172.67 131,039.80 324,745.00   000 - REVENUE

40.35 193,705.20 6,172.67 131,039.80 324,745.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

708.62 (277,761.09)(6,172.67)243,411.09 (34,350.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

40.35 193,705.20 6,172.67 131,039.80 324,745.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
128.95 (84,055.89)0.00 374,450.89 290,395.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 401 - CAPITAL PROJECT FUND:

Fund 411 - CAPITAL PROJECTS-STREET PROGRAM
1.19 2,247,816.77 1,624.92 26,990.23 2,274,807.00   000 - REVENUE

1.19 2,247,816.77 1,624.92 26,990.23 2,274,807.00   TOTAL REVENUES



*NOTE: Available Balance / Pct Budget Used does not reflect amounts encumbered.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF OWOSSO 12/15Page: 02/21/2020 04:59 PM
User: CAGrice
DB: Owosso PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2020

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 01/31/2020

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2020

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 411 - CAPITAL PROJECTS-STREET PROGRAM
100.00 (1,051.00)0.00 1,051.00 0.00   270 - ADMINISTRATIVE

129.58 (672,903.00)1,047,710.00 2,947,710.00 2,274,807.00   966 - TRANSFERS OUT

129.63 (673,954.00)1,047,710.00 2,948,761.00 2,274,807.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 2,921,770.77 (1,046,085.08)(2,921,770.77)0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

129.63 (673,954.00)1,047,710.00 2,948,761.00 2,274,807.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
1.19 2,247,816.77 1,624.92 26,990.23 2,274,807.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 411 - CAPITAL PROJECTS-STREET PROGRAM:

Fund 466 - CAPITAL PROJECTS-BUILDING AUTH
100.00 (250.45)28.78 250.45 0.00   000 - REVENUE

100.00 (250.45)28.78 250.45 0.00   TOTAL REVENUES

100.00 (250.45)28.78 250.45 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 (250.45)28.78 250.45 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 466 - CAPITAL PROJECTS-BUILDING AUTH:

Fund 494 - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
2.48 9,751.76 28.50 248.24 10,000.00   000 - REVENUE

2.48 9,751.76 28.50 248.24 10,000.00   TOTAL REVENUES

0.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00   270 - ADMINISTRATIVE

0.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 (248.24)28.50 248.24 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
2.48 9,751.76 28.50 248.24 10,000.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 494 - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND:

Fund 497 - CAPITAL PROJECTS-SUBDIVISION
100.00 (10,674.50)0.00 10,674.50 0.00   000 - REVENUE

100.00 (10,674.50)0.00 10,674.50 0.00   TOTAL REVENUES



*NOTE: Available Balance / Pct Budget Used does not reflect amounts encumbered.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF OWOSSO 13/15Page: 02/21/2020 04:59 PM
User: CAGrice
DB: Owosso PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2020

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 01/31/2020

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2020

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 497 - CAPITAL PROJECTS-SUBDIVISION

100.00 (10,674.50)0.00 10,674.50 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 (10,674.50)0.00 10,674.50 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 497 - CAPITAL PROJECTS-SUBDIVISION:

Fund 588 - TRANSPORTATION FUND
55.59 33,433.70 41,840.94 41,845.30 75,279.00   000 - REVENUE

55.59 33,433.70 41,840.94 41,845.30 75,279.00   TOTAL REVENUES

83.61 12,340.26 0.00 62,938.74 75,279.00   200 - GEN SERVICES

83.61 12,340.26 0.00 62,938.74 75,279.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 21,093.44 41,840.94 (21,093.44)0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

83.61 12,340.26 0.00 62,938.74 75,279.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
55.59 33,433.70 41,840.94 41,845.30 75,279.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 588 - TRANSPORTATION FUND:

Fund 590 - SEWER FUND
34.10 1,846,259.44 3,142.54 955,475.56 2,801,735.00   000 - REVENUE

34.10 1,846,259.44 3,142.54 955,475.56 2,801,735.00   TOTAL REVENUES

56.86 711,169.73 116,336.18 937,478.27 1,648,648.00   200 - GEN SERVICES

15.99 472,375.55 17,524.56 89,916.45 562,292.00   549 - SEWER OPERATIONS

15.44 456,598.25 21,570.75 83,401.75 540,000.00   901 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

10.63 45,397.67 0.00 5,397.33 50,795.00   905 - DEBT SERVICE

39.84 1,685,541.20 155,431.49 1,116,193.80 2,801,735.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 160,718.24 (152,288.95)(160,718.24)0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

39.84 1,685,541.20 155,431.49 1,116,193.80 2,801,735.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
34.10 1,846,259.44 3,142.54 955,475.56 2,801,735.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 590 - SEWER FUND:

Fund 591 - WATER FUND
51.58 1,749,820.36 (9,750.72)1,864,273.64 3,614,094.00   000 - REVENUE

51.58 1,749,820.36 (9,750.72)1,864,273.64 3,614,094.00   TOTAL REVENUES

60.66 183,052.23 37,239.03 282,231.77 465,284.00   200 - GEN SERVICES



*NOTE: Available Balance / Pct Budget Used does not reflect amounts encumbered.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF OWOSSO 14/15Page: 02/21/2020 04:59 PM
User: CAGrice
DB: Owosso PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2020

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 01/31/2020

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2020

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 591 - WATER FUND
52.49 291,193.30 47,259.93 321,745.70 612,939.00   552 - WATER UNDERGROUND

58.58 428,897.98 82,117.87 606,529.02 1,035,427.00   553 - WATER FILTRATION

86.89 59,628.76 44,709.49 395,371.24 455,000.00   901 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

71.70 172,925.75 0.00 438,156.25 611,082.00   905 - DEBT SERVICE

64.28 1,135,698.02 211,326.32 2,044,033.98 3,179,732.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

41.38 614,122.34 (221,077.04)(179,760.34)434,362.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

64.28 1,135,698.02 211,326.32 2,044,033.98 3,179,732.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
51.58 1,749,820.36 (9,750.72)1,864,273.64 3,614,094.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 591 - WATER FUND:

Fund 599 - WASTEWATER FUND
56.95 883,577.81 138,990.69 1,168,796.19 2,052,374.00   000 - REVENUE

56.95 883,577.81 138,990.69 1,168,796.19 2,052,374.00   TOTAL REVENUES

60.29 646,218.94 144,688.24 981,155.06 1,627,374.00   548 - WASTEWATER OPERATIONS

28.14 377,279.11 13,145.21 147,720.89 525,000.00   901 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

52.45 1,023,498.05 157,833.45 1,128,875.95 2,152,374.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

39.92 (139,920.24)(18,842.76)39,920.24 (100,000.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

52.45 1,023,498.05 157,833.45 1,128,875.95 2,152,374.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
56.95 883,577.81 138,990.69 1,168,796.19 2,052,374.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 599 - WASTEWATER FUND:

Fund 661 - FLEET MAINTENANCE FUND
36.46 772,519.92 66,490.27 443,226.08 1,215,746.00   000 - REVENUE

36.46 772,519.92 66,490.27 443,226.08 1,215,746.00   TOTAL REVENUES

74.42 70,908.86 34,777.62 206,332.14 277,241.00   891 - FLEET MAINTENANCE

25.40 700,152.44 81,696.60 238,352.56 938,505.00   901 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

36.58 771,061.30 116,474.22 444,684.70 1,215,746.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Fund 661 - FLEET MAINTENANCE FUND:



*NOTE: Available Balance / Pct Budget Used does not reflect amounts encumbered.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF OWOSSO 15/15Page: 02/21/2020 04:59 PM
User: CAGrice
DB: Owosso PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2020

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 01/31/2020

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2020

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 661 - FLEET MAINTENANCE FUND

100.00 1,458.62 (49,983.95)(1,458.62)0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

36.58 771,061.30 116,474.22 444,684.70 1,215,746.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
36.46 772,519.92 66,490.27 443,226.08 1,215,746.00 TOTAL REVENUES

273.52 1,158,786.27 (883,963.81)(848,552.27)310,234.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

64.01 9,516,999.86 2,693,470.01 16,925,289.14 26,442,289.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS
60.09 10,675,786.13 1,809,506.20 16,076,736.87 26,752,523.00 TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS






EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 
as of February 19, 2020 

NEW BUSINESS:  
BUDGETING: 
• All Committees, Sub-Committees, & Team will be working on updating and 

creating new work plans for our annual budgeting process.  

2020/2021 STRATEGIC PLANNING INITIATIVE REMINDER: 
During the Board Retreat the Board determined that two board-level initiatives 
should take place over the next year. They are as follows:  
1. Develop a comprehensive volunteer recruitment & retention strategy that 

increases the capacity of the overall program; and 
2. Develop a fund generation structure/program (in addition to DDA & TIF funding) 

that secures adequate financial resources for building program capacity. 

CUSTOMER SERVICE TRAINING: 
•  Another large discussion during the Board Retreat was the need for district-wide 

customer service training. The Board agreed to research and work with local 
stakeholders to organize this training for all downtown businesses.  

• After a brief discussion with the City Manager, there is interest to have all city staff 
to take part in this training as well. This will aid in our RRC process.  

• It would be beneficial to start discussing a plan of action on this initiative.  

HIGH CAPACITY EV CHARGING STATIONS:  
• Downtown Owosso has received a Consumers Power, PowerMIDrive Grant that will 

aid in the purchase and installation of one high-capacity EV changing station with 
our district.  

• The grant will provide approximately $120,000.00 of the $150,000.00 cost 
associated with the purchase & installation of this type of station. This leaves a 
need of $30,000.00 from matching funds to complete the project.  

• OMS/DDA Director will be meeting with grant organizers in late February to 
determine final costs. Once final costs are determined, the city & OMS/DDA will 
know what matching dollars are needed.  

• Installation of the EV station is proposed for late-spring 2020.  

NATIONAL PARKS SERVICE FACADE IMPROVEMENT GRANT PROGRAM:  
• The Michigan Main Street Center has submitted an application to the NPS to be 

one of 4 states to be selected for this program.  
• Prior to their submission to the NPS, they requested all Main Street Communities in 

the state to submit an internal application for selection to the grant application.  

 1



• OMS/DDA Director submitted an application to the state and Owosso Main Street 
was chosen a 1 of the 5 communities in Michigan to be added to the State’s 
application.  

• IF Michigan is chosen as one of the four states to get NPS grant dollars Owosso 
will receive funding for projects.  

DIRECTOR-LED INITIATIVES: 
MATCH ON MAIN:  
• The first Match on Main recipient from Owosso - Nom Nom Sweeties has finish all 

work. Final grant closeout will be completed later this month. Press releases from 
both OMS/DDA & the MEDC will happen shortly after.  

• We had 6 applicants for Round 1 of the 2020 MOM Grant - more than any other 
community in the state. Grant awards will be announced on February 21st. 

• TIMELINE Round Two of the 2020 MOM Grant:

- March 30, 2020= FY20 (ROUND TWO) Program documents released 
- April 8, 2020= Informational Webinar for Applicants 
- April 12, 2020= Business must be engaged with SBDC no later than April 12, 

2020 to allow for enough time for business plan to be reviewed and refined 
- May 4–17, 2020= Application submission window open. Deadline 11:59pm on 

May 17, 2020 
- May 18-22, 2020= Applications reviewed for eligibility 
- May 25-29, 2020=  If deemed applicable by the MEDC at its sole discretion, 

technical errors within the submitted application may be addressed and 
corrected by the Applicant and resubmitted no later than 11:59pm on May 29, 
2020 

- June 1–11, 2020= Application Scored by MEDC Review Team and Grantees 
Selected 

- June 12, 2020=   Applicants notified of grant status 
- June 12 - July 3, 2020= Grant Agreements created and executed 

FACADE GRANTS: 
• All construction has been completed. Final punch-list activities have been 

completed at all locations.  
• All required plans & standards have been created and approved by city council. 
• Formal, complete closeout of the grant is being scheduled with the MEDC for early 

March 2020.   
• The director will start recruiting new applicants for another round of facade grants 

next year. The first step is design renderings and cost estimates. 
• A meeting with the CATeam leader (Charles Donaldson) took place on Tuesday, 

November 5th to go over the next steps. Due to new state budget initiatives, Mr. 
Donaldson recommended that we pause future facade grant preparations. Once 
state initiatives are finalized, we can proceed.  

 2



BUILD EXPERIENCE: 
• OMS/DDA Director was 1 of only 30 people in the state to be invited to a BUILD 

Experience meeting in Detroit, MI on October 9, 2019. The seminar provided a tour 
of the BUILD Institute and talked about how communities can create & nurture an 
entrepreneurial culture in local communities. 

• More updates will follow as the MEDC works to select & develop a process to bring 
the BUILD model to other communities. Owosso Main Street/DDA is a part of the 
conversation. 

OMS/DDA WEBSITE: 
• The 2nd phase of the website is completed! The designer (AJ Morris) has 

completed the shopping website for Downtown Owosso and we conducted a 
series of trainings for downtown business owners in October to help them sign up 
to the site. In addition, we have created tutorial videos for business owners to help 
set up their account remotely (at the home or in their business).  

• We have 5 businesses signed up to take part in the store. Our hope is to get an 
additional 10 businesses to get their stores up and running before summer 2020.  

• OMS/DDA Director is also working with the designer to add the following to the 
site:  

• a “Resource” Section to the website that will help advertise the new EV 
programs that we have developed over the past several months.  

• a “DDA” section to the website that will share the program’s revenue & expense 
numbers; this is needed to fulfill the requirements of the new state law for 
DDAs.  

• we will be updating the event calendar to a more intuitive layout. Our hope it to 
still have everything linked to social media event pages. We will also add an 
event creation option within the site.  

• we will be connecting the volunteer section to our Notion database - this will 
allow those interested in volunteering to sign-up to our Notion-based volunteer 
database.  

• we will be adding a custom day-trip survey that will assess a potential visitor’s 
needs and provide pre-determined day-trip itineraries.  

SECURITY CAMERAS: 
• OMS/DDA is still pending Retriever Solutions to schedule installation of all cameras  
• All locations have been selected and all access has been acquired.  
• OMS/DDA Director can email board members camera locations if requested. 
• The mission is to have all cameras installed in spring 2020.  

OMS/DDA REPORT/PRESENTATION: 
• The OMS/DDA Director is developing a report & presentation that will accumulate 

10-years of Main Street data. 
• This report & presentation will be completed by the end of March. 

 3



• As information is gathered the OMS/DDA Director is drafting new materials for the 
program. Attached are new “Who we Are”; Transformation Strategy; Mission & 
Vision; and Statistic Documentation. Please review and provide input.  

FUTURE CONTRACTED SERVICES: 
• Services: 

1. Volunteer Database 
2. Project/Work Plan Management Software start-up 
3. Connect Downtown Coordinator.  

• Kaitlyn Springsdorf has completed the training template for “Connect Downtown”. 
A vision statement has been developed and a training will be scheduled for Spring 
2020.  

• Adam Perry has been contracted to create, train, and implement a new project 
management software called “Notion” for OMS. This new software will streamline 
our work plan process, make information more assessable to volunteers, help us 
build out a more robust volunteer database, and make monthly reporting to the 
state much easier. Adam presented the program to the board during the 
November board meeting. Adam will be training both the board & committee 
members throughout March & April 2020. 

• After speaking with Adam, it appears that a volunteer database can be formed 
within the Notion software. Adam will be developing this database as we continue 
all training and buildout of Notion. We will also be linking this software to our 
website to help streamline our volunteer pipeline.  

DIRECTOR ADVOCACY/IMPACT  
The National Main Street Center is encouraging local directors across the country to 
start measuring the impact that they have on their local communities. Reviewing 
data, the following is the financial impact the Director’s office has had in 
revitalization since 2013: 
• Since 2013 the Director’s office has generated (through networking stakeholders 

with national tax incentive programs; advocating for Downtown Owosso’s program 
at a national & state level; and applying for State grants & services) $2,449,222.00 
for downtown revitalization efforts.  

• That breaks down to $408,203.67 per year. The Director’s services (and 
subsequent salary) make a return on investment of 6.5 times per year. Meaning, 
the Director’s leadership efforts sextuple the OMS/DDA Board’s & City’s 
investment in that position. That’s a pretty good return. 

• This does not count the “social capital” investment that is developed through 
volunteer recruitment and organizational collaboration efforts. 

 4



DESIGN & BUSINESS VITALITY 
NEW COMMITTEE STRUCTURE:  
• Over the past year we have made some significant additions and changes to this 

committee resulting in very busy monthly meetings. In response, the committee is 
trying a new structure to aid in focus and organization of individual projects.  

• They will be focusing on four different “Task Force”/Sub-Committee teams that 
will meet separately to focus on overarching goals within that interest. Each Task 
Force or Sub-Committee will be in charge of multiple work plans.  

• The 4 teams are as follows: 
1. Entrepreneurial Ecosystem Sub-Committee 
2. Beautification Task Force 
3. Streetscape Task Force 
4. Preservation & Design Sub-Committee  

• These teams will NOT be required to meet monthly, they only need to meet in a 
way that accomplishes/completes the work plans they oversee.  

• Monthly Design & BV Committees meetings will focus on RLF reviews and team 
updates.  

REVOLVING LOAN/GRANT PROGRAM: 
• A total of 8 Applications have been submitted and reviewed by the Design & 

Business Vitality Committee (5 grants & 5 Loans). All were approved. 
• These applications total to be $59,575.00 in grants and $206,975.00 in loans for a 

grand-total of $266,550.00.  
• These grants and loans will help develop up to 32 new residential units with in our 

district; 24 of which will be brand new conversions from vacant/underutilized 
space. Additionally, two vacant storefronts will be reactivated - one of which is 
located within the Westown district.  

• 2 more applications will be reviewed during the February Design & BV Meeting. 
One $40,000.00 loan and One grant for architectural services for two upper-level 
residential units.  

• My long-term view on the grants: I could see up to (maybe more) $370,000.00 in 
residential development grants happening for at least 8-9 large projects in the 
downtown (counting the grants I have listed above). This would bring at least 
76-89 new residential units (a conservative #) into our district - 76 residential units 
that never existed before in the downtown. That's up to 152-191 new people living 
downtown. NOTE: I am being conservative with these numbers. That $320,000.00 
could help facilitate (conservatively) $48-million dollars of private/public 
investment to make those units happen. That's a good return in my opinion. ;-) It's 
also 8-9 historic properties preserved, maintained, and cash-flowing for the next 
generation. ;-) A MUCH better legacy than the one we were handed. 

 5



ENTREPRENEURIAL ECOSYSTEM SUB-COMMITTEE: 
• We completed the 2nd service with Matt Wagner.  
• The final report has been completed and submitted by Matt (emailed to you in 

January). Recommendations are as follows:  
1. Develop a comprehensive Pop-Up Program;  
2. Develop a shared Kitchen Incubator/Facility; 
3. Find/Create innovative rural financing tools. 

• A meeting is scheduled with Patrice Martin to discuss her leading the forward 
implementation of Matt’s recommendations and all EE activities. My hope is to 
form a sub-committee under Design & BV for these efforts. Our meeting is 
scheduled for: Thursday, February 20th at 11:30am.  

• We had a very successful “makers” meeting on 10/1 with local businesses that 
produce their own goods. The National Main Street Center will be working with us 
to see the viability of creating way to attract additional makers to our community. 

• The plan is to continue these “maker” meetings to help facilitate a culture 
conducive to both support current makers and attract new individuals interested in 
starting that type of business. 

BEAUTIFICATION TASK FORCE PROJECTS: 
• The Beautification Task Force will start meeting regularly in late February.  
• New, industrial-grade flower baskets have been installed on the Washington Street 

bridge - replacing ones that have continually been vandalized since they were 
installed two years ago. 

• The Beautification Task Force is going to start fundraising for this year’s flower 
program. 

• They will also be looking at all other downtown beautification efforts.  

STREETSCAPE TASK FORCE: 
• Due to the State’s recent budget discussions, the funding source in which 

streetscape grants were coming from is now limited. As a result, any grant 
application has been put on hold. The OMS/DDA Director will continue discussing 
this application with the CATeam leader.  

• Efforts to repair & upgrade Exchange Street will continue using money from the 
494 fund.  

• After Exchange Street improvements, if 494 funds still remain - they will be used 
to purchase new planters for Main Street.  

WAY-FINDING TASK FORCE: 
• Map sign bases are complete and pending DPW install. 
• Map insert designs are complete and are pending manufacture.   
• A select sub-committee is still meeting to develop & implement a digital way-

finding system for downtown. The main thing needed for to implement this 
program is to find sponsorships to purchase the hardware needed. 

 6



GRUBSTAKE WORKSHOP: (FOLLOW-UP): 
• The team agreed to start meeting regularly to research/plan program framework.  
• A regular scheduled meeting still needs to be developed. 


PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT: 
• The OMS/DDA Director is in continuing conversations with new and old downtown 

property owners regarding the redevelopment of their buildings. The below 
projects are actively working together with the OMS Director, the City and MEDC 
to find the best path for redevelopment. Some conversations at this point are 
confidential but the properties I can mention are: 

• Ludington Electric Property 
• The former City Club Building 
• The Matthews Building 
• Owosso Middle School 
• 800 W. Main Building 
• 113 & 115 E. Main Street 
• 108 E. Exchange Street 
• 110 N. Washington Street


PROMOTION & OUTREACH 
UPCOMING EVENTS: 
March 13 OR 20 = Ladies Night Out; 5-9pm (Shopping Event) - final date TBD 
April 11 = Bunny, Hop, Shop; 10am-4pm (Shopping Event) 
May 4 = Downtown Owosso Farmers Market Opening Day; Downtown Owosso 
Farmers Market 
May 4 = Downtown Spring Open House; 9am-4pm (Shopping Event) 

FUND GENERATION: 
• The committee will be using the current sponsorship form to search for event 

sponsors until and new fund generation strategy is developed.   

EVENTS: 
• All event sub-committees have been taking a break after a VERY busy 4th quarter 

of events.  
• Downtown saw record numbers of attendees during our holiday events. Mainly 

because of great weather during each event. Weather always helps.  
• In February we did conduct our annual Chocolate Walk. This event sold out for its 

third year in a row. We were able to raise $3,000.00 for all the website 
improvements I mentioned above.  

• All event sub-committee will start meeting again in March or April.  

 7



VOLUNTEER RECRUITMENT: 
• Another Volunteer Owosso Event will be scheduled at Foster Coffee again this 

year to aid in volunteer recruitment. We will be using our newly Notion program to 
aid in better follow-up and communication with perspective volunteers. The event 
will be schedule for either late March or early May.  

• A Volunteer Party should be planned sometime this summer.  

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT (POSSIBLY TO BE ADDED TO EE SUB-COMMITTEE): 
• The Business Collaboration & Education sub-committee is working on “business-

ran” retail shopping events for the district. These will be retail events that 
individual businesses will take lead on and coordinate with other downtown 
retailers. OMS/DDA will help in the coordination and with promoting the events.  

• The committee will be meeting on Monday, February 24th to develop all 2020 
Retail Shopping Events.  

• OMS/DDA Director is working with Heather Brooks to start putting together our 
Business Investment Guide. As an addition to this project, the director will be 
working with our City Manager to create a business information booklet. This 
booklet will help educate new business & property owners when the join 
downtown (permits, licensing, snow removal, signage, etc..). The development 
guide will have much of this info, we will just move it to another template.


DOWNTOWN OWOSSO MARKET INITIATIVE (DOMI): 
• After the 10-year videos are completed the committee will develop a list of new 

video promotions for the 4th Quarter - to be released in late September. The OMS/
DDA Director delayed these videos due to budget concerns, but we are moving 
forward with them in the following months. Additional fundraising will be needed.  

OMS/DDA VIDEO SERIES: 
• This project was put on hold due to budget concerns. OMS/DDA Director is 

working to find funding to finish a 3-part series celebrating Main Street in Owosso. 

“PROGRAM PARKING-LOT” 
OMS WORK PLAN DEVELOPMENT: 
• Work Plan Parking-Lot” - meaning that they are waiting for a Work Plan Leader. 

Committee Chairs are currently looking for leaders for these projects. Work Plans 
are: 
- Historic Design Booklet - being completed with OMS & HDC collaboration 
- Volunteer Party 
- Downtown Workshops 
- Downtown Business Videos 
- Downtown Discussions - Owosso Friends & Neighbors is fulfilling this 
- Open Streets Owosso 
- Volunteer Program 

 8



OTHER PROJECT IDEAS: 
• Downtown Snow removal - turn it into something similar to the watering program. 

We just need to find funding and/or sponsorships for equipment costs. 
• Business Recruitment Team - there has been discussion about forming a team of 

downtown stakeholders to create a team to visit other communities and recruit 
new businesses 

• Business Education Team - there has been discussion about forming a team of 
business owners that would volunteer their services to work with new business 
owners. 

• Development Team - there has been discussion about forming a team to help 
property owners and/or new business owners with potential property 
development - navigate permitting, find incentives, etc. The vision is a 5 person 
team (city official, building official; commercial realtor; long-time business owner; 
& commercial lender). 

NOTE: THIS REPORT DOES NOT COMMUNICATE THE OTHER PROJECTS/RESPONSIBILITIES THE 
OMS/DDA DIRECTOR IS IN CHARGE OF WITH THE FOLLOWING DEPARTMENTS (PER HIS MOU 
WITH THE CITY): 

• DOWNTOWN HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION 
• CERTIFIED LOCAL GOVERNMENT DESIGNATION UPKEEP 
• ADDITIONAL COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES 

 9



1 
 

MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE  

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY/MAIN STREET 

CITY OF OWOSSO 

 FEBRUARY 5, 2020 AT 7:33 A.M. 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

CALL TO ORDER:  The meeting was called to order by Chairman Dave Acton at 7:33 A.M. 

ROLL CALL: Was taken by Recording Secretary, Debbie Hebert 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Chairman Dave Acton, Vice-Chairman Bill Gilbert, Mayor Chris Eveleth, Commissioner Bobbi 
Fuller,  Commissioner Jon Moore, Commissioner Lance Omer, Commissioner Theresa Trecha and Commissioner Jim 
Woodworth. 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Commissioner Ken Cushman  

OTHERS PRESENT: Josh Adams, DDA Director; Albert Martinez, OHC Executive Director 

AGENDA:  IT WAS MOVED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER EVELETH  AND SUPPORTED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER 
OMER TO APPROVE THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED.  

AYES: ALL.  MOTION CARRIED.  

MINUTES:  IT WAS MOVED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER GILBERT AND SUPPORTED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER 
MOORE TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FOR THE MEETING HELD JANUARY 8, 2019. 
 
AYES:  ALL.  MOTION CARRIED. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:   Chairman Acton welcomed and extended congratulations to the newly selected OHC Executive 
Director Albert Martinez who expressed his desire to be inclusive of leaders of various organizations to impact each other 
and grow the entire community. 

ITEMS OF BUSINESS:   

1)  CHECK REGISTER – No Discussion 

IT WAS MOVED BY AUTHORITY EVELETH, SUPPORTED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER FULLER TO APPROVE THE 
CHECK REGISTER FOR JANUARY, 2020 AS PRESENTED. 
 
AYES: ALL.  MOTION CARRIED.  

2) FEBRUARY 2020 BUDGET REPORT- Most of the TIF Revenue has been received along with the general 
property tax dollars.  The budget is almost breaking even. Substantial fund raising will need to occur, particularly in the 
design committee for the flower program.  Almost $10,000 has been budgeted in the maintenance line item for the 
upcoming year.  

 
3) 2020/2021 Work Committees & Work Plans – The board was provided a list of OMS/DDA Promotion & 

Outreach Committee members along with Sub-Committees.  The OMS/DDA Promotion & Outreach 2020 and OMS/DDA 
Design & Business Vitality 2020 Work Plans were also presented listing current and/or projected events for the 2020/2021 
upcoming year.  The task force model with subcommittees will be utilized to allow committees to be more effective. All 
current work plans will be entered into Notion App.  Training will be offered. 

 
 

 
 
 



2 
 

 
COMMITTEE UPDATES: 
 

1) Design and Business Vitality – Grant/Loan applications recommendations for changes are being noted for 
changes going forward. Gaps have been noticed in the review process.  Recommendations for application 
changes may be presented at the March meeting. The spirit behind the program is to spur development.  It 
has been suggested meeting with the applications as a portion of the review to clear up questions that arise 
during the review process.  Further discussion offered ideas for changes and a reminder of the original intent 
of the program. 
 

2) Promotion & Outreach – Chocolate Walk is this Friday, February 7th.  Ticket sales have been a little slow. 
The committee is gearing up to implement the work plans as previously discussed.    

 
3) Business Owners Committee – Nick Pidek conducted a presentation to show businesses how they can use 

demographic and marketing data to increase their businesses.  Resources were offered. Attendance was low. 
A plan will be put in place to offer the presentation again with commitments for attendance of a minimum of 10 
businesses represented.  DDA will sponsor the presentation by offering Mr. Pidek a negotiated amount.  
 

4) Manager Updates – “My Drive Rebate” from Consumers Energy has been awarded to City of Owosso.  A   
$30,000 investment is required with several substantial rebates offered.  It will be located in the Public Safety 
Parking Lot. It is one station with 2 chargers.  Users will not be charged a fee. Further information will be 
coming. 

 
Board Continuing Education/Information: 

 Director Report – Quarterly Mainstreet meeting will be held in Milan on  March 24, 2020.  No fee is charged. 
The National Mainstreet Conference is being held May 18-20th in Dallas, Texas.  Board Members are invited 
to attend both events. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None 

BOARD COMMENTS. None

ADJOURNMENT: IT WAS MOVED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER WOODWORTH AND SUPPORTED BY AUTHORITY 
MEMBER OMER  TO ADJOURN AT 8:20 A.M.   

AYES: ALL. MOTION CARRIED. 


	AGENDA
	APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES
	Minutes of February 18, 2020

	PROCLAMATIONS/SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS
	2020 Street Bond Question - Informational Presentation

	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	Ordinanace Amendment - ROW Permit

	CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS
	CITY MANAGER REPORT
	CONSENT AGENDA
	Emergency Repair Authorization-Tertiary Tower Back-up Pump
	Automatic Meter Reading System Upgrade
	Purchase Authorization-DPW Fleet Pickup Trucks

	ITEMS OF BUSINESS
	COMMUNICATIONS
	2019 Planning Commission Annual Report
	Revenue & Expenditure Report-January 2020
	Downtown Development Authority/Main Street Executive Director Report-as of Februrary 19, 2020
	Downtown Development Authority/Main Street Minutes-February 5, 2020

	CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS
	NEXT MEETING
	BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS
	ADJOURNMENT



